Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E)
and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements
Prepared in accordance with IFRS
For the year ended December 31, 2023



Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2023

Table of contents

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated statement of financial position
Consolidated statement of profit or loss
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Consolidated statement of cash flows

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Page(s)
1-5

10

11-68



Grant Thornton

Grant Thornton Audit and
Accounting Limited
(Dubai Branch)

The Offices 5

Level 3

Office 302, 303, 308
One Central, DWTC
Dubai, UAE

P.0. Box 1620

T +971 4 388 9925
F+9714 388 9915
www.grantthornton,ae

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the “Basis for Oualified Opinion” section of
our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present faitly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2023, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion
L Recognition of receivables in relation to buy-back of shares and control reassessment

As disclosed in Notes 13 and 41 to the consolidated financial statements, pursuant to voluntary delisting of
the shares of Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company — Alexandria (“EZDK?”) from the Egyptian Stock Exchange,
the Group has recognised receivables in relation to buy-back of shares from the minority shareholders of
EZDK amounting to EGP 8,695.96 million. Based on our assessment, the shares bought-back pursuant to
delisting are, in substance, under the control of the Group and hence are required to be accounted for as
an equity transaction under International Accounting Standard 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation”,

Further, we have assessed that the voting rights on the bought-back shares are suspended unless these are
sold to other parties. This suspension of voting rights has resulted in change in the Group’s effective
ownership of Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company — Alexandria from 64.06% to 99.75%, Al Ezz Rolling Mills
Company from 64.06% to 99.75%, Al Ezz Flat Steel from 64.06% to 99.75%, Iron for Industtial, Trading
and Constructing Steel from 57.66% to 89.78%, Contra Wood for Wood Products from 55.16% to 95.43%
and Al Ezz for Medical Industries from 49.22% to 59.93%. Based on management’s interpretation of the
local laws and regulations of delisting shares rules, they have not considered the changes in Group’s
effective ownership in its subsidiaries while preparing these consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2023, which constitutes departure from the requirements of International Financial
Reporting Standard 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements™.

Had management accounted for the above-mentioned transaction as an equity transaction and reassessed
the control in its subsidiaries in the light of applicable Laws and Regulations, the Group’s trade and other
receivables would dectease by EGP 8,695.96 million, non-controlling interest would decrease by EGP
6,159.70 million, net profit attributable to the owners of the Parent would have increase by EGP 858.12
million, earnings per share would increase by EGP 1.61 per share and total equity would have been
decreased by EGP 8,695.96 million.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UAE - All rights reserved. Grant Thornton UAE represents all legal licenses under which Grant Thornton A!.ldit an(_i Acccuntfng grantthornton.ae
Limited Corporation, A British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) registered Branch, operate in the UAE. These licenses include the Abu D habi, Dubai and Sharjah
based branches — Grant Thornton Audit and Accounting Limited —registered with the Abu Dhabi Glebal Market = Grant Thornton Audit and Accounting

Limited Corporation BVI — registered with the Dubai Financial Services Authority,

“Grant Thornton” refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients
and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context requires. GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member
firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



Grant Thornton

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Ezz Steel Company (8.A.E) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) -
Basis for Qualified Opinfon (continued)
11 Valuation of investment at fair value through other congprehensive income

As disclosed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has an investment in unquoted
equity shares of Egyptian Steel with an amount of EGP 2,500 million as at December 31, 2023. We have
neither been provided with the basis for determination of the fair value of this investment nor have we
been able to satisfy ourselves with the fair value of this investment as at December 31, 2023 by any
alternative procedures. In the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence, we were unable to determine
whether any adjustments to the carrying amount of this investment were necessary at year-end. Accordingly,
we were unable to satisfy ourselves with valuation of this investment as at December 31, 2023. Our audit
report on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 was also modified

in respect of this matter.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “/Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Andit of the Consolidated
Financial Stafements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) issued by International Ethics Standards Boatd for Accountants IESBA Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the year ended December 31, 2023. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as 2 whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these mattets,

In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Onalified Opinion section of our report, we have
determined the matters desctibed below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Lack of exchangeability

As disclosed in Note 33.1 to the consolidated financial Quy procedures included the following:
statements, the Group has concluded that there was lack o
of exchangesbility between Egyptian Pound (EGP) and ® Obtaining assessment from management
other currencies and vice versa during the year ended as regarc.ls the' facts and crcumstances
and as at December 31, 2023. Accordingly, the Group surrounding then: conclusion and assessing
has assessed that the Central Bank’s official exchange the appropriateness of these facts and
rates were not suitable for conversion/translation of circumstances; in the light of supporting
foreign cutrency transactions/balances to EGP and evidence.

early adoption of amendments to International e Assessing the validity of the judgement
Accounting Standard 21 (“IAS 21”) will result in better made by the management in concluding the
presentation of these consolidated financial statements. lack of exchangeability between EGP and
The afore-said amendments clarify how an entity should other currencies during the year/as at
assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how the December 31, 2023 on the basis of IAS 21,

Group should determine a spot exchange rate when Assessing the completeness of disclosures

exchangeehifity Is lacking, of consolidated financial statements as per
The assessment of whether there is lack of IFRS requirements and ensuting the
exchangeability between EGP and other currencies and accuracy and adequacy of disclosures
vice versa involves significant judgement. Accordingly, related to early adoption of IAS 21 and lack
this has been considered a key audit matter. of exchangeability.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Marters (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Recoverability of deferred tax assets

As indicated in Note 20 to the consolidated Out procedures included the following:

financial statements, the Group has recognised e Assessing the design and implementation of
deferred tax assets of EGP 5,192.12 million that certain relevant controls linked to the process of
mainly includes cartied forward tax losses of Al recognizing and measuring deferred tax assets.
Ezz Rolling Mills Company and Al Ezz Flat Steel
and deferred tax assets recognised on foreign
currency differences.

® Assessing the reasonableness of criteria and the
main assumptions considered by the Group in
assessing the future taxable profits necessary to

Recovery of these deferred tax assets is analysed offset and utilize the deferred tax balance.

on management’s estimate of ava!lablhty _Df ®  Assessing the reasonableness of the amounts to be
sufﬁclent future taxable ptoﬁfs‘ against which offset with taxable future profits, in accordance
carried forward losses can be utilized. The future with applicable tax legislations.

taxable profits are based on approved
management’s projections and are determined
using cetrtain key assumptions such as capacity
utilization, gross margin percentage, inflation and
interest rates.

®  Analysing the consistency of forecast results which
setve as a basis for analysing the recoverability of
deferred tax assets with the business plan
approved by the Group’s management.

® Assessing the completeness of disclosures of

considered a key audit matter because estimating cons_olldated financial st?tements as per IFRS
requirements and ensuring the accuracy and

future taxable profits requi ignificant d
of juggm :nt_e PrOLES roquitea signiticant degree adequacy of disclosures related to the deferred tax
assets.

This analysis of recovery of deferred tax assets is

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements, on which our qualified opinion is issued, have been prepared for the
purpose of the Group meeting its continuing obligations under the Listing Rules of the London Stock
Exchange. These consolidated financial statements are therefore not the statutory consolidated financial
statements of the Group as required by the laws in the jurisdiction where the Group is registered and
regulated. The Group has prepared and published 2 separate set of consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2023, in accordance with Egyptian Accounting Standatds, and relevant laws
and regulatons (“EAS consolidated financial statements”). These EAS consolidated financial statements
have been audited by another auditor, who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on April
8, 2024. Our audit opinion doesn’t extend to those statutory consolidated financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from matetial misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, ot has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements {(continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exetcise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

®  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ot the override of internal
control.

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s intetnal control.

®  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management. Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosutes in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

® Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

® We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 2ll relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current petiod and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law ot regulation
precludes public disclosute about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in out report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

h)&ANﬁ /fjefu\’m

GRANT THORNTON UAE

Dr. Osama El Bakry
Registration No. 935
Dubai, United Arab Emirates

November 26, 2024




Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated statement of financial position
As at December 31, 2023

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprchensive income

Deferred tax asscts

‘I'rade and other reccivables

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

I'rade and other reccivables

Financial assets at amortised cost — treasury bills
Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital

Legal reserve

Other reserves

Accumulated losses

Treasury shares

Deficit of equity attributable to the Owners
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity/(Deficit of equity)

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Employee benefit obligations
Deferred tax liabilities

Lease liabilities

Trade and other payables
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Bank overdraft

Trade and other payables

Current portion of borrowings

Current income tax liabilities

Current portion of leasc liabilities
Provisions

Total current liabilities

Total liabilitics

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the)

November 26, 2024 and were signed on their behalf by:

Mr. Hassan Nouh
Managing Director

Notes

10
20
13

1
13
14

15

21
22
18
23

24

2023 2022

EGP 000 EGP ‘000
24,704,524 21,799,442
6,042 24,167
371,770 388,058
2,499,960 2,520,522
5,192,117 1,785,385
46,726 57,507
32,821,139 26,575,081
27,565,197 8,724,190
24,707,020 13,256,296
1,513,822 566,332
32,388,542 12,815,380
86,174,581 35,362,198
118,995,720 61,937,279
2,716,325 2,716,325
1,358,163 1,358,163
(1,176,073) (1,176,073)
(7,785,316) (8,627,268)
(82,302) (82,302)
(4,969,203) (5,811,155)
6,187,341 5,157,882
1,218,138 (653273)
26,045,937 15,735,432
209,092 192,482
3,652,795 3,145,527

- 34,939

4,487,620 3,121,114
34,395,444 22,229 494
218,442 638,717
35,585,267 19,600,990
42,461,487 17,034,756
3,691,348 2444108
35,957 30,115
1,389,637 612,372
83,382,138 40,361,058
117,777,582 62,590,552
118,995,720 61,937,279

/!
?{r. Hazem Goudh

Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated statement of profit or loss
For the year ended December 31, 2023

Notes 2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
Revenue 25 162,396,396 83,984,233
Cost of sales 26 (126,290,957) (64,993,991)
GROSS PROFIT 36,105,439 18,990,242
Administrative and general expenses 27 (2,826,724) (1,940,395)
Selling and marketing expenses 28 (2,746,372) (963,028)
Other operating income 29 554,478 175,891
Other operating expenses 30 (2,067,374) (901,304)
Operating profit 29,019,447 15,361,406
Finance income 31 2,475,149 414,174
Finance cost 32 (7,178,209) (3,363,0206)
Foreign currency losses 33 (21,601,091) (4,466,564)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 2,715,296 7,945,990
Income tax expense 23 (825,468) (2,100,781)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,889,828 5,845,209
Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company 850,914 3,721,472
Non-controlling interests 1,038,914 2,123,737
1,889,828 5,845,209

Earnings per share (expressed in EGP per share):
Basic and diluted earnings per share 34 1.60 6.98

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended December 31, 2023

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Actuarial (losses)/gains on remeasurements of
employee benefit obligations

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Note

19

2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP 000
1,889,828 5,845,200
(4,133) 63,585
(4,133) 63,585
1,885,695 5,908,794
848,293 3,762,138
1,037,402 2,146,656
1,885,695 5,908,794

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended December 31, 2023

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year before income tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depteciation of right-of-use assets

Interest on lease liabilities

Amortisation of intangible assets

Accrued interest on treasury bills

Provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventories
Provision of employees’ benefit obligations
Provisions formed during the year

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment losses on non-financial assets

Finance income

Interest expense on borrowings and bank overdrafis
Foreign exchange differences

Working capital changes:

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Provisions used

Employees’ benefits obligations paid — net

Cash flows from operations

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payment for acquisition of intangible assets

Payment to purchase unquoted equity securities - FVOCI
Proceeds from sale of unquoted equity securities - FVOCI
Interest received

Movements to restricted bank balances

Movements from restricted bank balances

Payment for purchase of treasury bills

Proceeds from sale of treasury bills

Net cash flows used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayments of borrowings

Lease payments

Acquisition of treasury shares

Dividends paid

Shares issued to non-controlling interest

Net cash flows from/ (used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Foreign exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Notes

37
37

15

2023 2022

EGP €000 EGP 000
2,715,296 7,945,990
1,311,991 1,225,542
18,125 18,125
10,935 14,009
16,498 15,275
(149,090) (34,175)
20,492 45,000
35,201 48,420
897,858 228,817

6 490

25,000 35,269
(2,326,059) (379,999)
7,167,274 3,349,017
10,145,421 1,266,489
19,888,948 13,778,269
(18,861,499) 677,941
(11,121,477) (2,257,556)
13,808,651 8,551,756
(120,593) (173,947)
(17,095) (11,981)
3,576,935 20,564,482
(7,062,959) (3,192,857)
(2,471,692 (991,973)
(5,963,716) 16,379,652
(3,233,458) (1,909,939)
114 147

(210) (844)
(1,249,980) (1,262,980)
20,562 g
2,349,752 379,999
(6,313,079) (1,097,208)
1,097,208 132,059
(2,931,519) (489,403)
2,133,118 89,507
(8,127,492) (4,158,662)
100,992,449 34,621,077
(73,194,379)  (38131,272)
(40,032) (38,703)
(9,898) .
(4,386) (848,774)

- 3,000
27,743,754 (4,394.672)
13,652,546 7,826,318
11,079,455 3,078,835
1,035,980 174,302
25,767,981 11,079,455

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended December 31, 2023

1 General information

Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) (the “Company”) was established as “Al Ezz Steel Rebars Company S.A.E” on
April 2, 1994, under the Law No. 159 of 1981 and was registered in the Commercial Register under number
472, Menofia Governorate, Egypt. The Company changed its name to “Ezz Steel Company S.A.E” on
November 1, 2009,

The Company was initially established for a period of 25 years from the date of its registration in the
Commercial Register. However, the term of the Company has been extended for a further period of 25
years with effect of April 2, 2019.

The registered address of the Company is Plot No. 129/B, Fourth Industrial Zone, El Sadat City, Menofeya,
Egypt.

The Company is engaged in manufacturing, trading and distribution of building materials, all types of iron,
ceramic, sanitary ware, pipes, mixers and taps and carrying on contracting works related thereto.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Egyptian Stock Exchange and its global depositary receipts (each
representing three ordinary shares) are also listed on the London Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2023 comprtise the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the “Group”). The Group’s financial year starts on January 1, and
ends on December 31, each year.

The Group has prepared a separate set of consolidated financial statements in accordance with Egyptian
Accounting Standards, and applicable laws and regulations for the year ended December 31, 2023, which
does not constitute part of these consolidated financial statements,

The details of Company’s principal subsidiaties, as at December 31, are set out below:

Effective ownership Effective ownership
interest held by the interest held by non-

Company controlling interests
Subsidiaries 2023 2022 2023 2022
Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company — Alexandria (A) 64.06%  64.06%  35.94%  35.94%
Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company (B) 64.06%  64.06%  35.94%  35.94%
Al Ezz Flat Steel (C) 64.06%  64.06%  35.94%  35.94%
Iron for Industrial, Trading and Constructing Steel
(Contra Steel) (D) 57.66%  57.66%  42.34%  42.34%
Contra Wood for Wood Products (E) 55.16%  55.16%  44.84%  44.84%
Al Ezz for Medical Industries (F) 49.22%  49.22%  50.80%  50.80%

A, Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company - Alexandria

Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company - Alexandria (“EZDXK?”) is established on July 17, 1982 under Commercial
Register number 104918,

The registered address of EZDIK is Alexandria-Matrouh Highway, Al Dekheila, Alexandria, Egypt.

EZDK is engaged in producing, shaping, manufacturing and trading of all forms of iron and steel products
and provision of services and consultations relating to the technological, technical, administrative and
financial aspects of iron and steel.

On August 5, 2023, the shareholders of EZDK resolved to authorise the voluntary delisting of EZDK’s

shares from the Egyptian Stock Exchange and EZDK was delisted from the Egyptian Stock Exchange on
October 4, 2023 (refer Note 41 for details).
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Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

1 General information (continued)
B. Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company

Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company (“ERM”) is established on March 10, 1986 under Commercial Register
number 77038. ERM is a wholly owned subsidiary of EZDK.

The registered address of ERM is 8 Amr Street, Mohandeseen, Giza, Egypt.

ERM is engaged in producing of steel rebars, welded rebar mesh, iron billets, ditect reduced iron and
architectural material ancillary thereto.

C. Al Ezz Flat Steel

Al Ezz Flat Steel (“EFS”) is established on July 25, 1998 under Commercial Register number 33296. EFS
is a wholly owned subsidiary of EZDK.

The registered address of EFS is Suez, Industrial Economic Zone, North-West of the Gulf of Suez, Ain
Sokhna, Suez, Egypt.

EFS is engaged in producing hot and cold rolled and acid and oil treated steel rolls, flat steel sheets, cut and
acid and oil treated flat steel sheets, sponge iron, burned lime and steel blocks and slabs and rebars.

D. Iron for Industrial, Trading and Constructing Steel (Contra Steel)

Iron for Industrial, Trading and Constructing Steel (Contra Steel) (“Contra Steel”) is established on May
31, 1995 under Commercial Register number 138227. The Group owns 57.66% interest in Contra Steel
through its subsidiary EZDK (90% shares of Contra Steel are held by EZDK as at the reporting date).

The registered address of Contra Steel is Polt 6, Borg Al Arab, Alexandria, Egypt.

Contra Steel is engaged in production 2nd trade of all metals, mineral products, constructions, maintenance,
transportation, imports and exports.

E. Contra Wood for Wood Products

Contra Wood for Wood Products (“Contra Wood”) is established on August 30, 1992 under Commercial
Register number 93416. The Group owns 55.16% interest in Contra Wood through its subsidiary Contta
Steel (95.67% shares of Contra Wood are held by Contra Steel as at the reporting date).

The registered address of Contra Wood is Plot No. 63, Industrial Zone No. 4, 6th October, Giza, Egypt.
Contra Wood is engaged in production of pipes supplies, steel casting foundry, and mechanical equipment.
B. Al Ezz for Medical Industries

Al Ezz for Medical Industries (“Ezz Medical”) was established on August 11, 2020 under Commercial
Register number 152115. As at reporting date, the Group holds 49.22% shareholding (30% ditectly and
19.22% through EZDXK) in Ezz Medical. The management has assessed that the Group has controlling
interest over Ezz Medical as the majority of its shares are currently held by the Group’s companies along-
with the ultimate beneficial owner of the Company.

The registered address of Ezz Medical is 35 Lebanon Street, Mohandeseen, Giza, Egypt.

Ezz Medical is established to manage a plant for producing medical supplies along with assembling medical
supplies and equipment. However, Ezz Medical has no operations as at the reporting date.
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Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

1 General information (continued)

Financial information of the subsidiaties of the Group as at and for the years ended December 31, 2023

and December 31, 2022, before consolidation adjustments, is as follows:

A. Financial position

2023
Equity/
(deficit of
Assets  Liabilities assets)
EGP000 EGP‘000 EGP ‘000
Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company — Alexandria 94,214,496 77,044,346 17,170,150
Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company 13,675,145 21,431,736  (7,756,591)
Al Ezz Flat Steel 36,866,367 29,669,494 7,196,873
Iron for Industrial, Trading and Constructing Steel (Contra Steel) 1,876,811 567,153 1,309,658
Contra Wood for Wood Products 34,390 2,384 32,006
Al Ezz for Medical Industries 26,680 18,352 8,328
2022
Equity/
(deficit of
Assets Liabilities assets)
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP 000
Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company — Alexandria 51,793,670 37,472,869 14,320,801
Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company 11,899,642 17,609,873  (5,710,231)
Al Ezz Flat Steel 19,690,136 14,591,849 5,098,287
Iron for Industrial, Trading and Constructing Steel (Contral Steel) 1,429,875 570,469 859,406
Contra Wood for Wood Products 31,748 2,362 29,386
Al Ezz for Medical Industries 26,271 18,252 8,019
B. Financial Performance
2023 2022

Net profit/ Net profit/
Revenue (loss) Revenue (loss)
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP 000 EGP ‘000

Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company —

Alexandria 126,646,991 2,800,465 61,710,826 5,276,996
Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company 29,228,154  (2,550,693) 12,048,571 (753,677)
Al Ezz Flat Steel 51,095,895 2,098,586 19,350,333 1,104,145
Iron for Industrial, Trading and

Constructing Steel (Contra Steel) 1,615,155 488,961 1,822,242 254,973
Contra Wood for Wood Products 43,350 7,277 37,822 5,778
Al Ezz for Medical Industries - 309 - (1,565)
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

1 General information (continued)

C. Cash flows

2023
Operating  Investing Financing
activities  activities activities
EGP ‘000 EGP 000 EGP ‘000

Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company — Alexandria 14,098,143 (10,209,294) 27,186
Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company 590,854 (25,876) (446,698)
Al Ezz Flat Steel 551,601 (2,725,112) 7,520,089
Iron for Industrial, Trading and Constructing Steel (Contra Steel) 633,186 (776,646) (41,844)
Contra Wood for Wood Products 6,787 16,668 (4,658)
Al Ezz for Medical Industries - - -
2022
Operating Investing  Financing
activities activities activities

EGP 000 EGP‘00  EGP ‘000

Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company — Alexandria 12,947,243 (1,518,678)  (5,738,893)
Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company 1,639,044 (8,723) (909,356)
Al Ezz Flat Steel 2,518,025 (1,354,181) (653,833)
Iron for Industrial, Trading and Constructing Steel (Contra Steel) 689,423 (350,850) (23,933)
Contra Wood for Wood Products 343 (11,529) (1,469
Al Ezz for Medical Industries (2,652) 5,602 -
2 Basis for preparation

21 Statement of compliance with IFRS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

2.2 Historical cost convention

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except for the
following:

®  Defined benefit obligations are recognised at the present value of future obligations using the
projected credit unit method; and
®  Financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value.

2.3 Going concern basis of accounting

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes that
the Group will be able to recover its financial assets within the credit terms and discharge its liabilities as

and when these falls due.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group incurred negative operating cash flows of EGP
5,963.716 million (2022: positive opetating cash inflows of EGP 16,379.7 million) and as at that date, it had
accumulated losses of EGP 7,785.3 million (2022: EGP 8,627.3 million). However, the Group has reported
net after tax profit of EGP 1,889.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 (2022: EGP 5,845.2
million). The management believes that this positive trend profitability and source of finance will continue
in the foreseeable future based on the five years” budgets and forecasts. Based on this, the management has
a reasonable expectation that the Group has and will have adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

3 New or revised standards and interpretations
3.1 Standards, Interpretations and amendments adopted as at January 1, 2023

Accounting pronouncements which have become effective from January 1, 2023 and have therefore been
adopted are as follows:

TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts;

Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts;

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2);
Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to TAS 8); and

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction and International Tax
Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules (Amendments to IAS 12).

Pursuant to adoption of amendments to TAS 1, all instances of the term ‘significant accounting policies’
have been replaced with ‘material accounting policy information’ in these consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2023, Other than the above, these amendments do not have a significant
impact on these consolidated financial statements and therefore additional disclosures have not been made.

e @ o o o

The Group has also elected to adopt the following amendments eatly:
Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21)

In August 2023 the International Accounting Standards Board issued Lack of Exchangeability
(Amendments to IAS 21) to requite an entity to apply a consistent approach to assessing whether a currency
is exchangeable into another currency and, when it is not, to determining the exchange rate to use and the
disclosures to provide.

These amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025 with
eatlier application permitted. The management has assessed that eatly adoption of this amendment would
result in better presentation of these consolidated financial statements due to specific citcumstances
prevailing in Egypt as at December 31, 2023, Accordingly, the amendments have been eatly adopted in
these consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023. The potential impacts of
early adoption of these amendments are disclosed in Note 33.

3.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing Standards that are not
yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Group

Other standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Group
are as follows:

Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after [annary 1, 2024:

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1);
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16);
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1); and

Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7).

Effective for annnal reporting periods beginning on or after Jannary 1, 2027:

e  JFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements; and
e  IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures.

The Group is in process of determining the potential effects of implementation of IFRS 18 and IFRS 19
on its consolidated financial statements. Other than the above, these amendments are not expected to have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application and therefore
the disclosures have not been made.
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4 Material accounting policies

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases specified by IFRS
for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below and on the following pages.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

®  Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee);

e  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

®  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and citcumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Generally, there is a presumption that a
majority of voting rights results in control. To suppozt this presumption and when the Group has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee;
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
®  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiaties
controlled by the Group from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impaitment of the
transferred asset. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies. Profit or loss and each component
of other comprehensive income (“OCI”) are attributed to the equity holdets of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having 2 deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including
goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair
value.

Business combinations

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired process is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and
the inputs acquired include an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to
petform that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing cutputs and is
considered unique or scatce ot cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to
continue producing outputs.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations by the Group,
regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiaty comprises the fair values of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquired business, equity interests issued by the Group, fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement and fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis at the non-
controlling interest’s propottionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded detivatives in host
contracts by the acquitree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date and is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial Liability are
subsequently remeasured with changes in fair value being tecognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, Fot the
putpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operaton when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. ‘Goodwill disposed of in these
citcumstances is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar botrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquire is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains
or losses atising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Functional cutrency of all the entites within the Group is Egyptian Pound (“EGP”) which is also the
Group’s presentation currency. All values are rounded to the nearest thousands (‘000) Egyptian Pound,
except where noted otherwise.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currency translation (continued)
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the presentation currency of the respective Group entity
at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate).

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cutrencies are translated to the presentation cutrency
at the exchange rate applicable at the reporting date and the resulting foreign exchange gains and losses ate
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except for monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation. These are recognised in OCI until
the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits, if any, attributable to exchange differences on those
monetary items are also recognised in OCIL.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated to the
presentation currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items in a
foreign currency that are measured based on historical cost are not retranslated at the reporting date.

Determination of spot exchange rate

The spot exchange rate is determined as the exchange rate for immediate delivery and is observable from
independent soutces or independently verifiable recent market transactions.

The Group estimates the spot exchange rate at a measurement date when a currency is not exchangeable
into another currency at a specified date. The Group assesses whether a currency is exchangeable into
another currency at a measurement date and for a specified purpose. If the Group is able to obtain no more
than an insignificant amount of the other currency at the measurement date for the specified purpose, the
currency is not exchangeable into the other currency.

The Group takes in to account the following in estimating the spot exchange rate:

®  Existence of an observable exchange rate available for a purpose other than for which the Group is
assessing the exchangeability; and
¢  another estimation technique as deemed approptiate under the circumstances.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of profit ot loss
during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method except for rolling rings and miles which is depreciated using the units of production

method.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The useful lives can be summarised, as follows:

Classification

Buildings 8 — 50 years
Machinery and equipment

- Rolling rings and mills According to actual use
- Other machinery and equipment 5—25 years
Vehicles 2 -5 years
Furniture and office equipment 3-10 years
Tools and appliances 4 -5 years
Leasehold improvements 8 — 40 years

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within “other operating income/(expenses)” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Projects under construction

Projects under construction are stated at cost less realised impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all
expenditures associated with the acquisition of the asset and make it usable. When the assets ate ready for
its intended use, it is transferred from projects under construction to the apptropriate category under
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with Group’s policies.

Leases

The Group has entered into various lease contracts having tenure of 8 years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agteements do
not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for botrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initally measured on a present value basis. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the

lessee’s incremental borrowing rate,
1 Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised
right-of-use assets is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shortet of its estimated useful life and the
lease term as follows:

Buildings 8 years

Right-of-use assets is also subject to impairment.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
IL Lease Liabilities

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental botrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is 2 modification, a change in the lease term, a chanpe in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a
change in the assessment to purchase the undetlying asset and is recognised under lease liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The finance cost is charged to the consolidated statement of profit ot loss over the lease period to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Irr Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to
be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term in profit or loss.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance, which can be controlled
and are capable of generating future economic benefits.

Intangible assets are stated at purchase cost including any expenses that are directly attributable to preparing
the asset for its intended use, net of accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Amortisation
is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use, since this mostly reflects the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

Production license and computer software

Production license comprises amount paid by Al Ezz Flat Steel to Industrial Development Authority in Egypt
to obtain approval for steel rebar production permit.

Computer software represents amount incurred in connection with the acquisidon of ERP and other
software being used by the Group.

These intangible assets are measured at historical cost less the accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impaitment losses, if any. Historical cost includes all expenditures associated with the acquisition of an
intangible asset.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit ot loss as it is incurred.

Amortisation is calculated to write-off the costs of these assets less their residual values, using straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives, and is generally recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
ot loss. The useful lives in the calculation of amottisation are as follows:

Computer software 8 years
Production license . 8 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if
appropriate.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill and other intangible assets (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition cost over the Group’s shate in the fair value of the investee’s
acquired net assets at the time of acquisition.

Goodwill is assessed for impairment at each reporting date, and impairment losses, if any, are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
acquiree are assigned to those units.

On disposal of a subsidiary or where the Group ceases to exercise control, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and opetating policy decisions of the investee but neither control not joint
control over those policies.

Investment in associate is accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in associates are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. Goodwill relating to associates is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and is not specifically tested for impairment.

Where the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount is reduced to
zero and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
ot constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of an investee.

Unrealized gains on transactions between Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these associates. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment loss on its investment in its associates. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether
there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate is impaired.

If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value, and then recognizes the loss within ‘Share of
profit/ (loss) of an associate’ in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of non;ﬁnancial assets
Non-financial assets other than goodwill

Non-financial assets other than goodwill are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s catrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell, and value in use.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are latgely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash
generating units (“CGUs”). Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs ot groups
of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use, and its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using 2 pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. They are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts
of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

Reversal of impairment Ioss

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct
labout, other direct costs and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditures, the
latter being allocated con the basis of normal operating capacity but excludes borrowing costs. Costs of
purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts.

Costs are assigned to individual items of inventories using weighted average method. Work in process and
finished goods are measured at actual manufacturing cost as the actual level of production of the Group

approximates the normal capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories is created in accordance with the management’s
assessment.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

® those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss, as applicable); and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income comptises equity

investment in unlisted companies. The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include trade and most
other receivables, treasury bills and cash and bank balances.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assefts (continued)

Classification (continued)

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income (OCI), as applicable. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whethet the Group has made an irtevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and measurement

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that is initially
measured at the transaction price) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition,

Trade receivables are initially recognised at transaction price (unless there is significant financing
component) and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold in the ordinary course of business. If
collection is expected in one year or less (ot in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. According to the Group business model, the Group
subsequently measures debt instruments at amortised cost for assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of ptincipal and interest.

Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and presented in other gains/ (losses), together with foreign exchange gains and losses.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss associated with its trade receivables
and debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit tisk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which tequires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Financial liabilities
Classification
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as borrowings or payables.

The Group’s financial liabilities include lease Labilities, borrowings, bank overdrafts and trade and most
other payables.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Recognition, measurement and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. These atre
subsequently measured at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the petiod of
these liabilities using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is dischatged, cancelled
ot expited. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another patty and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss as other income or finance
costs.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place cither:

® in the principal market for the asset or liability; or
® In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous matket for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset ot a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market patticipants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a2 non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (whete active
market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how
market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its assumptions on observable data as
far as possible but this is not always available. In that case management uses the best information available.
Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction
at the reporting date.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as
2 deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Reserves
Legal reserve

The Group transfers 5% of its net profit for the year to legal reserve in accordance with applicable Laws
and Regulations. This transfer is shown as a reclassification adjustment in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity for the year in which it occuts.

The shareholders may resolve to discontinue such transfer once the legal reserve has reached 50% of the
paid-up share capital of the Company. The legal reserve may be used for the benefit of the Company at the
discretion of the Directors, subject to approval by shareholders.

Other reserves

The Directors of any entity within the Group may resolve to cteate reserve by setting aside share of yeatly
profits for future expenditure commitments and obligations or any other purpose as they deem approptiate.

Treasury shares

When any entity within the Group putchases the Company’s equity share capital (treasury shates), the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted
from equity attributable to the Company’s shareholders until the shares ate cancelled or teissued.
Repurchased shates are classified as treasury shares and atre presented in equity. Where such shares are
subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects is included within equity.

Dividends

Obligation is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authotised and no longer
at the discretion of the Group, on or before the end of the reporting petiod but not distributed at the end
of the reporting period.

Employee benefits
Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaties, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service, are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Post-employment obligation
Defined bengfit plan

Some of the entities within the Group are maintaining a supplementary pension scheme for their employees.
The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position in tespect of this defined benefit
plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of government bonds that are denominated in the cutrency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance of the defined benefit
obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Employee benefits (continued)
Post-employment obligation (continued)

Defined benefit plan (continmed)

Remeasurement gains and losses atising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included
in retained earnings in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments ot
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

For defined contribution plan, the Group has established a provident fund and also pays fixed contributions
to the Social Insurance Authority in Egypt on a mandatory basis.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid under the afore-said
plans. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

Sharing of profits

The Group may distribute share of its profit to its employees in accordance with applicable Laws and
Regulations. These are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the period in which
the employees’ rights to receive the share of profit are established, and only when, it has a legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the
expected obligation can be made.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.

The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the Group recognises costs for a restructuring
that is within the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits.

In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer and in accordance with labour law. Falling
due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

Taxation
Currenr income tax

Cutrent income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from ot paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
ot substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates
taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the
consolidated profit or loss. Management petiodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
tespect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabiliies and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
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Taxation (continued)
Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

® When the deferred tax liability atises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit not taxable profit or loss; or

® In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the catry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

® When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; ot

® In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaties and
associates, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferted tax
asset to be utilised. Untecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Value Added Tax (“VAT”)

The Group is subject to VAT on its transactions inside Egypt and in othet jutisdictions in which it operates
at various rates. The amount of VAT liability is determined by applying the applicable tax rate to the
invoiced amount of services (output VAT) less VAT paid on purchases made with the relevant supporting
invoices (input VAT). The Group reports revenue net of value added tax for all the periods presented in
the consolidated financial statements.

Salary Tax

In accordance with the Egyptian Tax Law, the Group withholds the Salary Tax due on each employee and
remits the tax to the Tax Authority. Salary Tax withheld by the Group ate recorded as liability in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Stamp Tax

Stamp tax law in Egypt is imposed on a variety of documents, such as contracts and on the values of certain
transactions e.g. advertisements. Stamp tax is expensed in profit or loss as incurred.

Property Tax

Property tax is imposed on all buildings in Egypt. The tax rate is applied on the annual rental value of the
taxable buildings after certain deduction allowed for maintenance. Property Tax expense is recognized on
an accrual basis.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resoutces will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount
has been reliably estimated. The timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with
the present obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

The Group makes use of the exemption in IAS 37 not to disclose some or all of the information required
by the accounting standard with regards to provisions when it can be expected that such disclosure would
prejudice seriously the position of the Group in a dispute with other parties on the subject matter of the
provision.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other botrowing costs
are recognised in consolidated profit or loss in the petiod in which they are incurred.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers when control of the goods or services is
transferred to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on the five steps model set out as
follows:

Step 1: identify the contract(s) with a customer:

A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable tights and
obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: identify the performance obligations in the contract:

A performance obligation is a premise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or services to the
customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price:

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring promised goods or services to 2 customet, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third

parties.
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Revenue recognition (continued)
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract:
For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate the transaction price

to each performance obligation in an amount depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenne when (or as) the entity satisfies a perforniance obligation:

An entity shall consider the terms of the contract, as well as any laws that apply to the contract, when
evaluating whether it has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

To determine the point in time at which a customer obtains control of a promised asset and the Group
satisfies a performance obligation, the Group considers the requirements for control. In addition, the
Group considers indicators of the transfer of control, which include, but are not limited to, the following:

The Group has a present right to payment for the asset. The customer has legal title to the asset.
The Group has transferred physical possession of the asset.

®  The customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

®  The customer has accepted the asset.

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised as revenue at point in time when conttol of the products has transferred, being when
the products are delivered to the customers, the customer has full discretion over the channel and price to
sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, tisks of damage and loss
have been transferred to the customet, and either the customer has accepted the products in accordance
with the sales contract, acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration
is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument and continues unwinding the discount as interest

income.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
current accounts with banks, time deposits, and money market funds that have an initial maturity period of
less than three months and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of bank overdrafts,
if any, that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings pet share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Parent, excluding
any costs of setvicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weight average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year (excluding ordinaty shares purchased by the Group and held as treasury shares).
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Earnings per share (continued)
Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per shate is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The Group does not have any categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares, hence the diluted earnings
per share is the same as the basic earnings per share.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on
current/non-current classification.

An asset is current when it is:

e  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold ot consumed in the normal operating cycle;

e  Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

®  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

®  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Lability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

e  Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

®  Ttis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

®  Thete is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Executive Officer and Board of Directors. The Board of the Company has appointed a Chief Operating
Decision-Maker who assesses the financial performance and position of the Group and makes strategic
decisions. This Chief Operating Decision-Maker has been identified as the Chief Executive Officer.

5 Accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilides, the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that requite 2 material adjustment to the catrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

5.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Estimates and adjustments are continually being evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, rarely equal the related actual results.

30



Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

5 Accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments (continued)
5.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilides within the next financial year are outlined below:

Recognition of deferred tax assets

At each reporting date, the Group’s management reviews the recoverable amount of deferred tax assets
recognised by its subsidiaries with significant carried forward tax losses. Defetred tax assets on these tax
losses are recognised to the extent that it is probable that these losses will be available for adjustment against
future profits of these subsidiaries. As at December 31, 2023, the Group has recognised deferred tax assets
on these carried forward tax losses amounting to EGP 1,328 million (2022: 1,054.2 million). The
management of the Group has prepared a budget for the years upto 2028 and has assessed that these
subsidiaries will have sufficient profits for adjusting carried forward losses in the forthcoming years (Note
20).

In addition to the catried forward losses, the Group has also recognised defetred tax assets of EGP 3,522.7
million on foreign cutrency differences (2022: EGP 582 million). The Group has assessed that these foreign
currency differences will also be available for adjustment against taxable profits in future (Note 20).

52 Other accounting estimates
Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment at each reporting date. The tecoverable
amount of a cash generating unit (CGU) is determined using certain assumptions (Note 8.1). The changes
in those assumptions may cause actual results to vary and cause adjustments to the goodwill within the next
financial year.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date. At each reporting date,
management assesses that the useful lives represent the expected utility of the assets to the Group. The
carrying amounts ate analysed in Note 6.

Estimating the spot exchange rate

When the Group has assessed that there is lack of exchangeability between Egyptian Pound and other
foreign cutrencies and vice versa, the Group estimates the spot exchange rates using an observable
exchange rate, either with or without adjustment, as necessary.

In determining the observable exchange rate, the Group considers the following:

whether several observable exchange rates exist;

the purpose for which the currency is exchangeable;
the nature of the exchange rate; and

the frequency with which exchange rates are updated.

The basis for estimation of spot exchange rates as at and during the year ended December 31, 2023 have
been disclosed in Note 33.1.

Employee benefit retirement obligations

The present value of employees’ defined benefits obligations depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the
net cost of employees’ benefits include the discount rate of future cash outflows and any changes in these
assumptions will impact the carrying amount of employees’ benefits.
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5.2 Other accounting estimates (continued)
Employee benefit retirement obligations (continued)

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate of cash flows at the end of each financial year. The
discount rate is the interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash
outflows expected to be requited to settle the defined benefits obligations. The Group considers the
discount rate at the end of the financial year on market returns on the government bonds denominated in
the currency and the year estimated for the defined benefits obligations (Note 19).

5.3 Judgements

Significant Judgements
Assessment/reassessment of control

The management makes judgements, as to whether or not the Group controls an investee, at the time of
acquisition of the investee and subsequently if facts and citcumstances indicate that there are changes to
one ot more of the three elements of control listed in IFRS 10. Management has reviewed its control
assessments in accordance with IFRS 10 and has concluded that there is no effect on the classification of
any of the Group’s subsidiaties held as at January 1, 2023.

Determining whether there is a lack of exchangeability

Management ascertains whether there is a lack of exchangeability between Egyptian Pound and other
currencies and vice versa based on the economic conditions prevailing in the jurisdiction where Group
operates i.e. Egypt. The significant judgement exercised by the management in this regard are disclosed in
Note 33.1.

Other Judgements
Determining the lease term

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases agreements across the Group. These
terms are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of
termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

Judgement is exercised by the management to assess whether the exercise of an option is reasonably certain
and whether it may be considered in determining the lease term. Management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an econornic incentive to exercise a termination option. Years after termination
options are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain not to be terminated.

32



129

quawdmba pue yueid “Gradord jo sassepd JueAs[as 03 uopoNISUOD I3pun §303(03d WO PaIASUEN
933 YR (TOT[IW 9°Z0% O TTOT) VO §'6L1S JOH 03 Sununowe seak ayp Sunmp pagopduos a1om s103(03d UTeIIad ‘707 ‘¢ IPQWIIDC] Papus Jeak ap unmn(y

"Aj3uIp30028 30§ PAINO2IE ULAq sey pue dnozo) oy Aq JwewaSurire Supuruy v ST PIssIssE USIq SEY UONOESUES YOEQISEI] PUE I[BS SIY L SZ0Z
‘6Z 32quR0a(] Jurpud um2) s7ea£ / B JO PUS 9 IE JUNOWE PauruInapaid v Ie pue] pres-o105e 23 Umo o3 1ySE € sey dnois) ay Suswaduriie Sy JO SUODIPUOd puE
swi3a} 3y Jad sy “uoI L JOF 0 SURUNOWE 1500 © YIm puel Jo [203ed € 03 uoneRs ur Auedwor) Y I JuswLSUEIIE YoEqRsEI] PUE apes & paudis sey dnoiny sy,

dnox9 ayp 3o suwrew oy ur wopensi3a1 Supuad o3¢ 3eys Swn 03 swp wWo3j sanaed Ui TP woiy parmbor pue] Jo sppared F9EO sopnpPUr os[e dnoicy 2y, ‘sseoozd ur are
dnozy a1 jo aureu oy uy pue] 3 3318181 03 s9IPad03d 1 “ApusIIny ‘sanaw axenbs (‘g7 JO TIIE [¢303 ¥ Sy pue 199foid rEmsnpur ue Surysiiqeiss jo asodind 2
303 010¢ U paseyond sea pue| 2y, ‘UONIW g7 JOHT JO UOREISPISUOD & s fuedwoy) Juawdopas(] zong jo Jno) woxy paseyosnd pue jo (posed € sapnpUT pue|

ys'boL'vT  sOL‘60€T - 1€0°ZET 6£0°TET 181 TZZL6IST TEYOPT'9 SHLPSL €202 ‘TI€ Taquianaq
1€ Se IN[EA Y00q IAN]
650181 - €06'c TLI6ET 0zZe‘152 ceL'vee SOT'E6891 998'85.°¢ - CZOT ‘1€ T2qUIada(] 38 Sy
(910°661) s - {6z5) (LLSTT) (Ler'n) (r95°eg1) (602) - ea atp Sunmp spesodsiq
I66°TIET - - 010°6€ LSLLE SH0'6 LESCTOT THRZTT - T34 21 10§ 3BTEYD)
v80'8sz'0c - €06'E 161°10C 0v1°s€T STT91e Z6E°590°01 £€T9¢se - €202 ‘| Lrenuefe sy
:uoneardap paemumosy
€8S°GL09F  SOL'60ET  £06¢€ COLLLE 65£°28€ $82°LTC 98€°060T€ 86+v'S06'6  SYLVSL £20Z ‘1€ I9quIada(J 1e sy
(0c1°661) > - (629 (L2511 Lern) (¥89°681) (602 - eaf ot Supmp spesodsiq
- (czs'oL1's) - 082°9. S8E°Z9 L8E'8 8119105 £5e'91 - SI9JSUBL],
€6I°LITY e6LLITY - = - . - - 5 ek oy Supnp suonippy
92S'LS0Ty  SE0TLTE £06°c 256'S62 16srge ¥£002e TS6'65T LT #6688 SPLY8L €z0g ‘1 Aenuef e sy
1509
€202
000, 491 000, dOF 000, dOH 000, JOH 000, O 000, dOF 000, dOH 000, dOF 000, dOH
BT, uononnsuod syuswascidwr saouendde juawdmba SO A weurdmba pue s3upmg pue]
Iapun proyases| pPue sjooy, 92gjo Azourgoep
syoalorg PUE 21031,
juswdinbe pue jueld ‘Ajsadosyg 9

€Z0T ‘T€ 1Pqua0a(J papua yeal o 103
(panupuod) sjusUIAIeIS [EIOULUY PIIEPI[OSUOD Y} 03 SION]

SIUWIES [EIOUBUL] PIIEPIJOSUOn)
sawrerpisqus sjt pue (Fy's) Auedwon) jaaig zzyg



4%

seTT 1 166TIET
665 €65 (8z 230N]) sesuadxa Junayrew pue Surpg
ovb'81 srr‘oc (Lg 210N) sasuadxa [erausd pue sANEISTUTIPY
€0S°902°1 £82°162°T (9z 210N) S3[es JO 1807
000, dOHF 000, dOH
20T €e0T
"mBOﬁOm 14 ﬁuumuo_._.w 218 mw0~ I0 uﬂﬁi& .«O JuauwIalels ﬁuu.m—um.—OwQOU u—..—u E ﬁuv—uﬁmudm GO_.umUUumUQ
TH'66L°1T SE0'TLTE - 19L%6 11+'96 608°C 0956111 [FARTA)) G¥LP8L TZ0T ‘1€ FPquaa(g
Jje se uﬂﬁ._w.,.w &OOL uvz
$80°852°02 = €06°¢ 161°102 or1°6ee STT'91T T6E590°91 £ez'9gs’e = T20T 1€ 12quRaa(J 3% Y
(069°LET) - - €n (86L) #s6) (sz6'sET) = - reaf ot Juomp spesodsiq
Zrs'sTTl - % LBE1E ¥18°€T 6¥E’S GLSOFG L1¥Yee - ek o1 103 3BreyD
ZeTOLL6T = €06°C L18691 S TANAKS 0€8°11Z TrL'09Ts1 918°11¢°¢ - 720z ‘1 Avenuef e sy
..w@n.&&.%__q PaprtinIL”
925 L.80TH SE0TLTE €06'E Z56'56C 165 1EC $€0°0Z2 TS6'65T LT 66886 ShL¥8L T20T 1€ 32qua3(] I8 sy
(LzegeT) - = [G])) (86L) ¥s6) (z959¢1) = - rea o Sumap spesodsiq
- (159zor) a 6L0%E 12L°6¢ - LISLIE 1LETT €09°Z SI9jsueL],
GLE'GROT GLE'680T . - = - - . - 1224 o1y Supnp suonppy
8L¥901°0F T1E°GRS‘] €06°¢ 988°192 829962 886022 LE9'RLOLT £86'9.8° Th1T8L zz0e 1 Lenue[ je sy
1507
20T
000, dOH 000, 49" 000, dOH 000, dOH 000, I9H 000, 491 000, IOH 000, 1OH 000, dOH
[eoL, uononnsuod  symawasordun savuendde juswdmba SR A juawdimbse pue sSurppng pueT
Ispun pioyasea ] pue sjoog, 201330 Kzoumyoepy
s199lorg pue 2ImIuan,g
(ponupuos) Juswdinba pue jued ‘Ajedolg 9

€70Z ‘1€ I9quI223(] papuU2 1834 33 303
(panupuoo) s)uawalels [EUEUY PIIEPIOSUOD I3 03 SIION]

S1USWNE]S [ETOUBUL] PAIEPIOSU0T)
saprerpisqns s pue ('v's) Aueduwron) (oa1g 2z



Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment include fully depreciated assets amounting to EGP 4,469 million still in use

as at December 31, 2023 (2022: EGP 3,854 million).

Projects under construction amounted to EGP 2,309.7 million as at December 31, 2023 mainly represents
construction of a new plant for producing iron billets and iron sheets rolls in Al Ezz Flat Steel (2022: EGP
3,272 million mainly represented construction of an electric atc furnace with a production capacity of 1.6
million tons per year of molten steel in Al Ezz Flat Steel). The nature of these projects is as follows:

2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP 000

Buildings 34,9006 15,729
Machinery and equipment 2,216,008 3,232,999
Advance to suppliers 57,429 21,945
Other projects under construction 1,362 1,362
2,309,705 3,272,035

Machinery and equipment include capitalized borrowing costs of EGP 254.2 million at average
capitalisation rate of 14.38% per annum (2022: EGP 107.4 million at average capitalisation rate of 8% per

annum).

7 Leases

The Group has entered in to lease agreements for some of its building located in Cairo, Egypt. The leases
are reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

L Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the right—offuse assets and the movements during the year are shown below:

Buildings

2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP 000

Gross cartying amount
As at January 1, 145,000 145,000
As at December 31, 145,000 145,000
Accumulated depreciation
As at January 1, 120,833 102,708
Chatge for the year (Note 27) 18,125 18,125
As at December 31, 138,958 120,833
Net carrying amount as at December 31, 6,042 24167
1L Lease liabilities
The movements of lease liabilities duting the year were as follows:

Buildings

2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000

As at January 1, 65,054 89,748
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 32) 10,935 14,009
Payments during the year (40,032) (38,703)
As at December 31, 35,957 65,054
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7 Leases (continued)
1L Lease liabilities (continued)
Lease liabilities are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

2023 2022
EGP <000 EGP ‘000

Non-current liabilities - 34,939
Current liabilities 35,957 30,115
35,957 65,054
Commitments in relation to leases payable and present value of lease liabilities are as follows:
Buildings
2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
Commitments in relation to leases

Within one yeat 41,59 38,704
Later than one year and less than five years - 38,704
Minimum lease payments 41,591 77,408
Present value of lease liabilities
Within one year 35,957 30,115
Later than one year and less than five years - 34,939
Present value of minimum lease payments 35,957 65,054
8 Goodwill and other intangible assets
2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
Goodwill (Note 8.1) 315,214 315,214
Othet intangible assets (Note 8.2) 56,556 72,844
371,770 388,058

8.1 Goodwill

Goodwill has arisen on the acquisition of Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company — Alexandria during previous
years. At the reporting date, this goodwill has been carried at an amount initially recognised at the time of
acquisition of the afore-said subsidiary less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Goodwill is monitored by management at the level of the respective cash generating unit i.e. at the level of
Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company — Alexandria. The impairment of goodwill is reviewed annually to ensure
that its carrying value does not exceed the recoverable amount.

As at the reporting date, the management has assessed that the carrying value of goodwill is less than their
recoverable amount, hence, no impairment loss was recognised in this regard in these consolidated financial
statements (2022: EGP Nil). The recoverable amount of the respective cash generating unit is based on
value in use, determined using certain key assumptions.
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8 Goodwill and other intangible assets (continued)

8.2 Other intangible assets

Software Licenses Total
2023 EGP 000 EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
Gross carrying amount
As at January 1, 2023 104,225 35,857 140,082
Additions 210 - 210
As at December 31, 2023 104,435 35,857 140,292
Accumulated amortization
As at January 1, 2023 56,992 10,246 67,238
Charge for the year 11,375 5,123 16,498
As at December 31, 2023 68,367 15,369 83,736
Net carrying amount as at December 31, 2023 36,068 20,488 56,556
Software Licenses Total
2022 EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
Gross carrying amount
As at January 1, 2022 103,381 35,857 139,238
Additions 844 - 844
As at December 31, 2022 104,225 35,857 140,082
Accumnlated amortization
As at January 1, 2022 46,840 5,123 51,963
Chatrge for the year 10,152 5,123 15,275
As at December 31, 2022 56,992 10,246 67,238
Net carrying amount as at December 31, 2022 47,233 25,611 72,844

Amortization expenses included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are allocated as follows:

2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000

Cost of sales (Note 26) 5,123 5,123
Administrative and general expenses (Note 27) 11,375 10,152
16,498 15,275
9 Investment in associates
Effective ownership Carrying amount
2023 2022 2023 2022
% Y% EGP ‘000 EGP 000
Egyptian German Co. for Flat Steel Marketing
(Franco) (L.L.C) (Under Liquidation) 32.03%  32.03% 90 90
The Egyptian Company for Cleaning
and Security Services 30.80%  30.80% 80 80
Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Egypt 32.03%  32.03% 25 25
EZDK Steel UK Ltd. 32.03%  32.03% 1 1
196 196
Impairment losses on investment in associates (196) (196)

The values of these investments had fallen to zero. Therefore, the Group stopped recognition of further
losses under the equity method for these investments. Management assessed that neither of these associates

are material to the Group.
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10 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Group has designated the investments, as shown below, as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) because the Group intends to hold these investments for a long term
and strategic purposes:

Effective ownership Carrying amount
2023 2022 2023 2022
% %o EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
Ungnoted equity securities
Egyptian Steel Company for
Management of Steel Factories
Projects (“Egyptian Steel”)(a) 11.53% 11.53% 2,499,960 2,499,960
Arab Company for Special Steel (b) 0.64% 0.64% 4,263 4,263
Atlantic Pacific Transport Ltd. (c) - 2.89% - 4,016
Collective investment scheme
Mazid Investment Fund (d) - 13,000
2,504,223 2,521,239
Cumulative changes in fair value (4,263) 717

2,499,960 2,520,522

Some of the strategic investments have been realised during the year and its related cumulative gains or loss
have been transferred within equity accordingly.

(a) Egyptian Steel

In 2022, the Group invested in shares of Egyptian Steel, 2 company engaged in production of steel rebars
and iron billets, through Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria (a subsidiary) at cost of EGP 2,500
million. The investment is fully paid and no consideration is payable as at the reporting date (2022: EGP
1,250 million) (Note 22).

The management has assessed that the fair value of the afore-said investment, as at December 31, 2023, is
approximately equal to the carrying cost.

(b) Arab Company for Special Steel

The Group holds the shares of Arab Company for Special Steel through its subsidiaty, Al Ezz El Dekheila
for Steel — Alexandria. The management has assessed that the fair value of the afore-said investment, as at
December 31, 2023, is approximately equal to EGP Nil (2022: EGP Nil).

(¢) Atlantic Pacific Transport Ltd,

The Group held the shares of Atlantic Pacific Transport Ltd. through its subsidiary, Iron for Industrial,
Trading and Constructing Steel (Contra Steel). During the year ended December 31, 2023, Adantic Pacific
Transport Ltd. has been wound up and the investment has been fully derecognised accordingly.

(d) Mazid Investment Fund

These represent amount invested in collective investment scheme with Mazid Investment Fund during the
year ended December 31, 2022.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, these investments were disposed by the Group for a
consideration of EGP 13 million (i.e. amount equal to carrying value before disposal). Accordingly, no gains
ot loss on disposal have been tecognised by the Group on disposal of this investment,
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10 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (continued)
Cumulative fair value

The movement in cumulative changes in fair value duting the year is as follows:

2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000

As at January 1, 717 717

Adjustments during the year 3,546 -

As at December 31, 4,263 717
11 Inventories

2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP “000

Raw matetials 10,094,493 4,275,038

Finished goods 7,709,579 1,745,615

Spare parts and consumables 3,622,776 2,326,617

Goods in transit 3,763,193 3,786

Work in process 2,555,763 533,249

27,745,804 8,884,305

Less: provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventoties (180,607) (160,115)

27,565,197 8,724,190

The movement in provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventory during the year is as follows:

2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000

As at January 1, 160,115 115,115
Charge for the year (Note 30) 20,492 45,000
As at December 31, 180,607 160,115
12 Financial instruments by category

2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP 000
Financial assets at fair value through OCI

Ungquoted equity investments 2,499,960 2,520,522
Financial assets at amortised cost

Trade and other receivables 7,181,330 9,100,177
Treasury bills 1,513,822 566,332
Cash and bank balances 32,388,542 12,815,380

41,083,694 22,481,889

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Borrowings 68,507,424 32,770,188
Trade and other payables 34,122,506 20,179,770
Bank overdraft 218,442 638,717
Lease liabilities 35,957 65,054

102,884,329 53,653,729
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12 Financial instruments by category (continued)

Trade and other receivables and trade and other payables disclosed above include only financial assets and
liabilities (refer to Notes 13 and 22 for details). Refer to Note 4 for a desctiption of the accounting policies
for each category of financial instruments.

A description of the Group’s consolidated financial statements risk, including risk management objectives
and policies is disclosed in Note 39 and details about fair values of these financial assets and libilities are
desctibed in Note 40,

13 Trade and other receivables

2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP 000

Financial assets at amortized cost

Trade receivables 2,613,451 2,029,061
Notes receivable 609,342 4244 318
Trade receivables due from related parties (Note 35) 9,451 9,297
Trade and notes receivables — gross (Note 25) 3,232,244 6,282,676
Less: allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables (40,559) (40,559)
Trade and notes receivables — net 3,191,685 6,242,117
Deposits 1,938,920 1,328,660
Letters of credit - cash margins 1,098,671 1,500,737
Due from related parties (Note 35) 927,378 28,498
Accrued interest 24,541 -
Letters of guarantee - cash margins 135 165

7,181,330 9,100,177

Non-financial assets
Receivable in relation to buy-back of shares of

Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company — Alexandria (Note 41) 8,695,961 -
Refundable taxes 2,881,049 1,711,268
Value added taxes receivables 2,275,003 992,903
Advances to suppliers and employee loans 1,768,323 742.370
Tax receivables from the Custom Authority 1,394,725 463,995
Claims receivables 110,806 105,097
Prepayments 262,696 267,556
Other debit balances 339,240 60,824
Less: impairment losses on other receivables (155,387) (130,387)

17,572,416 4,213,626
24,753,746 13313803

Trade and other receivables are classified as follows in the consolidated statement of financial position:

2023 2022
EGP 000 EGP ‘000

Non-current portion 46,726 57,507
Current portion 24,707,020 13,256,296
24,753,746 13,313,803

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold in the ordinary course of business. They
are generally due for settlement immediately and therefore are all classified as current. Details about the
Group’s impairment policies and calculation of the expected loss allowance are provided in Notes 4 and
39, respectively.
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13 Trade and other receivables (continued)

The movement in impairment losses on other receivables during the year is as follows:

2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP 000

As at January 1, 130,387 95,223

Impairment for the year (Note 30) 25,000 35,164

As at December 31, 155,387 130,387
14 Financial assets at amortised cost - Treasury Bills

2023 2022

EGP 000 EGP ‘000

Gross amounts at redemption 1,564,366 574,143

Less: unearned interest (50,544) (7,811)

Amount of Treasury Bills paid 1,513,822 566,332

Interest income recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (Note 31) 149,090 34,175

The average effective interest rate related to treasury bills is 19.13% (2022: 15.61%).

The Group has adopted 12-month ECL model, based on management assessment, there is an immaterial
impact on the outstanding balance of Ttreasury Bills due to the following factors:

®  They are issued and guaranteed by the Government of Egypt;

®  There is no history of default; and

® Incorporating forward-looking information would not result in any significant increase in expected
default rate.

15 Cash and cash equivalents
2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
Bank balances - current accounts 26,708,605 12,485,328
Bank balances - time deposits* 5,011,185 5,973
Cheques undet collection 73,095 234,779
Cash in hand 595,657 89,300
Cash and bank balances 32,388,542 12,815,380
Less: bank overdraft (Note 21) (218,442) (638,717)
Less: restricted bank balances** (6,402,119) (1,097,208)
Cash and cash equivalents 25,767,981 11,079,455

*  The average rate on time deposits is 3 months LIBOR plus 1% during the year ended December 31,
2023 (2022: 3 months LIBOR plus 1%) with a matutity of 3 months.

**  Restricted bank balances are withheld with the Group’s bankers under credit facilities” agreements and
outstanding letters of credits.
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16 Share capital

The Company’s authorized share capital amounted to EGP 8,000 million, represented in 1,600 million
shatres of par value of EGP 5 each. As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the issued and paid-up capital is
distributed as follows:

2023
Shares
No. of value Percentage of
Shareholders Shares EGP ‘000 ownership
Engineer/Ahmed Abd El Aziz Ezz 360,986,470 1,804,932 66.45%
Treasury shares 10,373,195 51,866 1.91%
Othets (public stocks) 171,905,362 859,527 31.64%
543,265,027 2,716,325 100.00%
2022
Shates
No. of value  Percentage of
Shareholders Shares EGP 000 ownership
Engineer/Ahmed Abd El Aziz Ezz 356,933,139 1,784,666 65.70%
Treasury shares 10,373,195 51,866 1.91%
Others (public stocks) 175,958,693 879,793 32.39%
543,265,027 2,716,325 100.00%

A. Dividends

No dividends have been proposed by the Board of Directors during the year ended December 31, 2023
(2022: EGP 426.3 million).

B. Treasury shares

In priot years, the Group had acquired treasury shares at a value of EGP 10.4 million. As at December 31,
2023, these shates are outstanding for more than one year since their acquisition. The treasury shares are
represented as follows:

® 9,462,714 shates (with an acquisition value of EGP 71.92 million). These shares are held in the name
of Al Fzz Rolling Mills (a subsidiary) at the reporting date.

® 910,481 shares (with an acquisiion value of EGP 10.38 million), putchased by the Company in
putsuance with the Board of Directors decision on January 5, 2021 for purchase of 1% of paid-capital,
up-to the maximum of one million shares.

17 Reserves
2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP 000
Legal reserve (A) 1,358,163 1,358,163
Other reserves (B) (1,176,073) (1,176,073)

182,090 182,090

A, Legal reserve

In accordance with Company Law No. 159 of 1981 and the Company’s Articles of Association, 5% of
annual net profit is transferred to the legal reserve. The Group may discontinue such transfers when the
legal reserve reaches 50% of the share capital. The reserve is not eligible for disttibution to the shareholders.

42



Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

17 Reserves (continued)
A. Legal reserve (continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group did not make any transfer to statutory resetve (2022
EGP Nil).

B. Other reserves

In previous years, the Group acquited additional ownership interest in its existing subsidiaty i.e, Al Ezz
Dekheila Steel Company — Alexandria from non-controlling interests. Accordingly, the difference in the
amount paid as consideration and the carrying amount of the non-controlling interest acquired has
recognised as other reserve in equity, as follows:

EGP ‘000
Carrying amounts of non-controlling interest acquired 2,620,756
Consideration paid to non-controlling interest (3,796,829)
(1,176,073)

18 Borrowings

2023
Current Non-current Total
EGP ‘000 EGP 000 EGP ‘000
Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) (18.1) 6,472,209 121,960 6,594,169
Al Bzz Dekheila Steel Company — Alexandria (18.2) 23,171,295 22,547,027 45,718,322
Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company (18.3) 1,246,198 2,845,090 4,091,288
Al Bzz Flat Steel (18.4) 11,571,785 531,860 12,103,645
42,461,487 26,045,937 68,507,424
2022

Current Non-current Total
EGP 000 EGP ‘000 EGP 000
Ezz Steel Company (5.A.E) (18.1) 4,415,908 538,194 4,954,102
Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company - Alexandria (18.2) 10,119,783 10,566,200 20,685,983
Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company (18.3) 1,113,330 3,896,537 5,009,867
Al Ezz Flat Steel (18.4) 1,385,735 734,501 2,120,236

17,034,756 15,735,432 32,770,188

18.1 Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E)

Term Credit
loans facilities Total
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP 000
December 31, 2023 540,122 6,054,047 6,594,169
December 31, 2022 890,702 4,063,400 4,954,102

Term loans

On January 18, 2015, the Group signed an agreement with the National Bank of Egypt and the Arab African
International Bank (“Security Agent”) for a joint long-term loan of EGP 1.7 billion.

The loan has a tenure of 7 years, payable in 26 non-equal quarterly instalments and carties interest at 3.5%
above 3 months’ lending rate of the Central Bank of Egypt. The loan is secured against first degree fonds
de commerce mortgage on the Company including Sadat factory.
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18 Borrowings (continued)
18.1 Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) (continued)
Credit facilities

The Group obtained credit facilities from vatious banks in Egypt amounting to EGP 6,054 million (2022:
EGP 4,063 million). The Group is obligated to pay the due amounts in full whenever the facilities are due.

The interest rate is 1.5% to 2% above corridor rate. The facilities are secured by promissory notes for the
full facility amount.

18.2 Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company - Alexandria

Term Credit
loans Facilities Total
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP 000

December 31, 2023 9,677,621 36,040,701 45,718,322
December 31, 2022 5,706,565 14,979,418 20,685,983
Term loans
2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
National Bank of Egypt 2,340,320 1,897,290
Emirates NBD Bank PJSC 2,705,890 5
Qatar National Bank 1,403,148 1,287,030
Bank of Alexandria 875,992 632,606
Arab African International Bank 872,508 654,324
Banque Du Caite 572,496 480,175
National Bank of Kuwait 419,894 286,267
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation 271,373 204,873
Export Development Bank of Egypt 216,000 264,000
9,677,621 5,706,565
Banks Guarantees/ Currency  Instalments Interest rate
securities
National Bank of Egypt Restriction on EGP 20 quarterly 2% above
disposal of assets instalments ending  corridor rate
on June 15, 2028
Qatar National Bank Right to seize EGP 26 quartetly 1% above
assets in case of instalments ending  corridor rate
default on January 31,
2029
Qatar National Bank Right to seize usD 26 quarterly 4% plus LIBOR
{foreign cutrency loan) assets in case of instalments ending  rate
default on August 31,
2025
Arab African International An insurance UsD 28 quarterly 4% plus LIBOR
Bank (foreign currency policy with 110% instalments ending  rate
loan) of outstanding on November 28,
balance. 2025
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18 Borrowings (continued)
18.2 Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company - Alexandria (continued)

Term loans (continued)

Banks Guarantees/ Currency Instalments Interest rate
securities
Banque Du Caire (foreign ~ An insurance UusD 28 quarterly 2% above corridor
currency loan) policy with 110% instalments ending  rate
of outstanding on December 31,
balance 2028
Banque Du Caire Insurance policy  EGP 28 quarterly 3.5% plus LIBOR
with 110% of instalments ending  rate
outstanding on December 31,
balance 2028
National Bank of Kuwait  Restricion on USD 26 quarterly 3.5% plus LIBOR
(foreign currency loan) disposal of assets instalments ending  rate
on August 28,
2026
Hongkong and Shanghai ~ Collection of EGP 12 semi annual 2% plus corridor
Banking Corporation foreign currency instalments ending  rate
proceeds through a on January 15,
designated bank 2026
account
Hongkong and Shanghai Collection of EURO 12 semi annual 3.5% plus LIBOR
Banking Corporation foreign currency instalments ending  rate
(foreign currency proceeds through a on January 15,
loan) designated bank 2026
account
Export Development Right to seize EGP 24 quarterly 1.25% to 1.5%
Bank of Egypt assets in case of instalments ending  above cotridor
default on February 17, rate
2028
Emirates NBD Bank PJSC  Negative pledge =~ USD 12 semi annual Libor rate + 5.5%
(foreign currency loan) against assets instalments ending

on May 08, 2029

Credit facilities

The Group obtained credit facilities from various banks amounting to EGP 36,041 million (2022: EGP
14,979 million).

These credit facilities have maturities ranging from 1 to 12 months and carry interest rates at prevailing
market rates.

18.3 Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company

Term Credit
loans Facilities Total
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
December 31, 2023 3,896,536 194,752 4,091,288
December 31, 2022 5,009,834 33 5,009,867
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18 Borrowings (continued)

18.3 Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company (continued)

Term loan

The Group obtained a loan from National Bank of Egypt amounting to EGP 3,897 million (2022: EGP
5,010 million). The interest rate is 1.5% to 2% above corridor rate. The loan is secured through motrtgage
of property, plant and equipment of Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company.

Credit facility

The Group obtained a credit facility from National Bank of Egypt and Bank Misr amounting to EGP 195
million (2022: EGP 0.33 million). The credit facxhty has maturity of 12 months and carry interest rate at
1.5% above corridor rate.

18.4 Al Ezz Flat Steel

Term Credit
loans facilities Total
EGP ‘000 EGP 000 EGP <000

December 31, 2023 1,270,572 10,833,073 12,103,645
December 31, 2022 1,025,255 1,094,981 2,120,236
Term loans

The Group obtained loans from National Bank of Egypt, Bank Misr and SACE Bank amounting to EGP
1,271 million (2022: EGP 1,025 million). The interest rate is 1.5% above corridor rate or 3.5% plus LIBOR
rate. The loans are secured through banks’ right to seize assets in case of default on payments.

Credit facilities

The Group obtained credit facilities from National Bank of Egypt and Bank Mist amounting to EGP 10,833
million (2022: EGP 1,095 million). These credit faciliies have maturities up to 12 months and carry interest
rates at prevailing market rates.

18.5 Movement in borrowings

Credir facilities
2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
As at January 1, 20,137,832 24,932,666
Proceeds from credit faciliies during the year 94,664,383 31,356,084
Repayments of credit facilities during the year (65,217,800)  (36,150,918)
Effect of foreign currency differences 3,538,158 -
As at December 31, 53,122,573 20,137,832
Term loans
2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP 000
As at January 1, 12,632,356 9,906,926
Proceeds from term loans duting the year 6,328,066 3,264,993
Repayments of term loans during the year (7,976,579) (1,980,354)
Effect of foreign currency differences 4,401,008 1,440,791
As at December 31, 15,384,851 12,632,356

46



Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

18 Borrowings (continued)

18.6 Fair values of the loans

Fair value of the loans is approximately equal to their cartying values since the loans are bearing market
prevailing variable interest rates.

18.7 Interest rate benchmark reform

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks is being undertaken globally, including the
replacement of some interbank offer rates (IBORs) with alternative neatly risk-free rates (referred to as
TBOR reform’).

As at December 31, 2023, the Group’s IBOR exposure, indexed to EURQ and USD LIBOR, is limited to
multiple existing loans. The management is under discussion with the respective borrowers for necessary
amendments to these loan agreements having contractual terms indexed to EURO and USD LIBOR. The
management believes that the impact of revision of the loan agreements will not have a material impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group in future periods (refer to Notes from 18.1 to 18.4 for
details).

19 Employee benefit obligations

Some entities within the Group maintain a Supplementary Pension Scheme for their employees. These
employees are entitled to benefits upon their retirement based on a defined benefit plan. The entitlement
is based on the length of service i.e. minimum number of years setved and final remuneration package of
the employee upon retirement (refer to Note 4). The plan is fully funded by the Group and no separately
administered fund has been established in this regard. The defined benefit obligation is calculated using the
projected credit unit method.

The amounts recognised at the consolidated statement of financial position date and movement thereon,
are disclosed as follows:

2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000

Balance as at January 1, 219,197 246,343
Provision for employees” benefit obligations 35,201 48,420
Actuarial loss/(gain) on measurement of defined benefit Liability 4,133 (63,585)
Contributions received from employees during the year 7,167 7,368
Payments/adjustments during the year (24,262) (19,349)
Balance as at December 31 241,436 219,197

Employee benefit obligations ate classified as follows in the consolidated statement of financial position:
2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP 000

Non-current portion 209,092 192,482
Current portion (Note 22) 32,344 26,715
241,436 219,197

The break-up of provision for the year is as follows:
2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
Current service cost 2,312 16,705
Interest on defined benefit obligation 32,889 31,715
35,201 48,420
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19 Employee benefit obligations (continued)
The break-up of actuarial loss/(gain) on measurement of defined benefit liability is as follows:

2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000

Impact of changes in financial assumptions (75,865) (39,390)
Impact of changes in experience adjustments 79,998 (24,195)
4,133 {63,585)
Provision for the year has been included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are as follows:
2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
Cost of sales (Note 26) 27,515 38,056
Administrative and general expenses (Note 27) 5,741 7,673
Selling and marketing expenses (INote 28) 1,945 2,691
35,201 48,420
Actuarial assumptions
2023 2022
Discount rate
- Net benefit obligations 24.70% 17.00%
- Net cost 17.00% 14.70%
Life table (yeats) A49-52 A49-52
20 Deferred taxation
20.1 Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
2023 2022
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP 000
Property, plant and equipment (3,261,470) - (2,887,300)
Provisions and impairment 333,465 - 134,497 =
Lease liabilities 7,909 - 14,685 -
Carried forwarded tax losses 1,328,040 - 1,054,216 -
Tax on unpaid dividends - (391,021) - (258,227)
Foreign cutrency differences 3,522,703 (304) 581,987 -
5,192,117 (3,652,795) 1,785,385 (3,145,527)

As at the reporting date, the Group has recognized deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses of Al
Ezz Flat Steel and Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company. The management has assessed that the Group will be
able to adjust these tax losses against profits in the future years, based on the 5 years’ estimated taxable
profits of these subsidiaries.

20.2 Movement of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities - net

2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000

Balance as at January 1, 1,360,142 1,765,954
Charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss (Note 23.1) (2,899,464) (383,359)
Adjustments during the year - (22,453)
Balance as at December 31, (1,539,322) 1,360,142
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20 Deferred taxation (continued)

20.3 Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Impairment losses on other receivables
Provisions
Tax losses

2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP 000
11,337 11,317
127,629 132,341
500,622 481,120
639,588 624,778

The deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items due to uncertainty of the
utilization of their benefits in the foreseeable future. The Group does not expect tax losses that are available

for offsetting against future taxable profits.

21 Bank overdraft

Bank overdraft amounted to EGP 218.4 million as at December 31, 2023 (2022: EGP 638.7 million). This
facility forms an integral-part of the Group’s cash management to finance its working capital. The average
interest rate for bank overdraft was 1.5% to 3.5% above corridor rate during the year ended December 31,

2023 (2022: 1.5% to 3.5% above corridor rate).

22 Trade and other payables

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Trade payables

Notes payable

Accrued expenses

Payable to supplier against acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Accrued interest

Retention payables

Dividends payables

Due to related parties (Note 35)

Payable against acquisition of shares of Egyptian Steel (Note 10)

Non-financial liabilities

Advance from customers (Note 25)

Withholding tax payable

Payable to port authorities

Current portion of employee benefit obligation (Note 19)
Social insurance payable

Value added tax payables

Other credit balances

Trade and other payables are classified as follows in the consolidated statement of financial position:

Non-current portion
Current portion

2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
16,423,842 11,975,484
12,572,270 3,707,701
2,549,404 1,676,588
1,983,611 999,876
519,501 415,186
72,300 96,747
1,566 1,612

12 56,596

- 1,249,980
34,122,506 20,179,770
5,246,740 1,829,753
331,316 139,889
96,483 96,483
32,344 26,715
9,090 19,054

& 327,706

234,408 102,734
5,950,381 2,542,334
40,072,887 22722104
2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
4,487,620 3,121,114
35,585,267 19,600,990
40,072,887  22,722.104
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22 Trade and other payables (continued)

Trade payables include an amount of EGP 273.3 million (2022: 1,847.7 million) payable to electricity and
natural gas supplying companies. These balances had original maturities upto 48 months and carried interest
rates at 8.75% (2022: 8.75%).

Trade payables also include an amount of USD 37 million, equivalent to EGP 1,836.9 million (2022: EGP
915.6 million) borrowed by Al Ezz Flat Steel Company, a subsidiary from one of the suppliers of the Group
i.e. Daneili Company. This amount carries interest at variable rates linked to LIBOR plus 1.2%.

Payable to suppliers against acquisition of property, plant and equipment represents amount due to Danieli
Company by Al Ezz Falt Steel and Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company, a subsidiary against purchase of
machinery and equipment in prior years. The amount is payable in Euros in quartetly instalments ending in
2026 and carries interest upto 2%. The amount is secured by joint guarantees from the Company and Al
Ezz Dekheila Steel Company - Alexandtia.

23 Taxations

23.1 Income tax expense

2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
Current tax expense
- Current year (Note 23.3) 3,724,932 2,484,140
Deferred tax
- Origination and reversal of temporary differences (Note 20.2) (2,899,464) (383,359)
825,468 2,100,781
23.2 Reconciliation of tax expense
2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP ‘0000

Net profit for the year before income tax 2,715,296 7,945,990
Income tax according to the current tax law (22.5%) (610,942) (1,787,848)
Tax on dividends from subsidiaries and associates (4,212) (40,064
Provisions and impairment (8,676) (34,760)
Exempted investments income 1,750 (23,565)
Tax impact on treasury bills 3,514 848
Adjustments on other items (74,109) (122,232)
Previous years’ tax differences - 98,640
Tax on undistributed profit in subsidiaties and associates (132,793) {191,800)
Income tax expense (Note 23.1) (825,468) (2,100,781)
Effective tax rate 30% 26%

23.3 Movement of current income tax liabilities

2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP 000

As at January 1, 2,444,108 929,489
Income tax paid during the year (1,937,188) (143,512)
Withholding tax receivable (488,769) (785,975)
Income tax for the year (Note 23.1) 3,724,932 2,484,140
Adjustment during the year (51,735) (40,034)
As at December 31, 3,691,348 2,444,108
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23 Taxation (continued)

23.4 Tax positions

Due to the nature of tax assessment process in jurisdiction where the Group is operating, the final outcome
of tax liabilities are contingent upon the inspection and final assessment by the tax authorities. Below is a
summary of the tax status of the significant components of the Group as at reporting date.

A. Ezz Steel Company

Corporate Tax

The Company was exempt from income tax for a 10 years’ period from January 1, 1997 to December 31,
2006, in accordance with article No. (24) of Law No. (59) for 1979 related to development of the New
Urban Communities.

The tax inspection was performed for the period from the Company's inception till December 31, 2017,
and all taxes due were paid.

Fort the years from 2018 to 2019, the Company has filed the tax returns and has paid the related tax liabilities.
However, the tax inspection is still in the process by relevant tax authorities.

For tax years from 2020 to 2022, the Company has filed the tax returns and has paid the related tax liabilities.
Further, the Company has not been inspected by the relevant tax authorities yet for these periods.

Sales Tax and VAT

The tax inspection was performed for the period from the Company’s inception till 2015, and all taxes due
were paid.

The tax inspection was done for years from 2016 to 2020 and differences were settled by the tax authorities
through deduction from the Company’s credit balance.

For the years from 2021 to 2023, the Company has submitted monthly tax returns on time to the relevant
tax authorities. However, the Company has not been inspected by the relevant tax authorities yet for these

petiods.

Salary Tax

The tax inspection was petformed for the period from the Company’s inception till 2018, and all taxes due
were paid.

The tax inspection was performed for the years from 2019 to 2020 has been concluded and the settlement
of difference identified is in process.

For the years 2021 and 2022, the Company has submitted annual tax forms and payroll reconciliations on
time to the relevant tax authorities. However, the tax inspection is still in the process by relevant tax
authorities.

For the year 2023, the Company has submitted annual tax forms and payroll reconciliations on time to the
relevant tax authorities. However, the Company has not been inspected by the relevant tax authorities yet

for this period.
Stamp Tax

The tax inspection was performed for the periods from inception till the end of December 31, 2020, and
the tax resulting from the tax inspection and assessment were settled and paid to the relevant tax authorities.

For the period from 2021 to 2022 the Company paid all tax dues. However, the tax inspection is still in the
process by relevant tax authorities.

For the year 2023, the Company paid all tax dues.
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23 Taxation (continued)

23.4 Tax positions (continued)

A Ezz Steel Company (continued)

Property Tax

The tax assessment has been issued and paid up to December 31, 2021.

B. Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company — Alexandria (EZDK)

Corporate Tax

The tax inspection was performed dll December 31, 2017, and all taxes due wete paid.

For the years from 2018 to 2019, EZDK has filed the tax returns in its legal periods and has paid the tax
liability. However, the tax inspection is in process by relevant tax authorities.

For tax yeats from 2020 to 2023, EDZK has filed tax returns and has paid the tax dues. Further EDZK
has not been inspected by the relevant tax authorities yet for these petiods.

Sales Tax and VAT
The tax inspection was performed till 2020, and all taxes due were paid.

For the years from 2021 to 2023, EZDK has submitted monthly tax returns on time to the relevant tax
authorities. However, EZDK has not been inspected by the relevant tax authorities yet for these petiods.

Salary Tax
The tax inspection was performed for the period till 2016, and all taxes due were paid.

The tax inspection was performed for the years from 2017 to 2020 has been concluded and the settlement
of difference identified is in process.

For the years from 2021 to 2023, EZDK has submitted annual tax forms and payroll reconciliations on
time to the relevant tax authotities. However, EZDK has not been inspected by the relevant tax authorities
yet for these periods.

Stamp Tax

The tax inspection was performed for the periods from inception till the end of December 31, 2020, and
the tax resulting from the tax inspection and assessment wete settled and paid to the relevant tax authorities.

For the years from 2021 to 2023, EZDK paid all tax dues.
Property Tax
The tax assessment has been issued and paid up to December 31, 2021.

Pending disputes: EZDK has submitted a request to the Agamy Real Estate Taxes Authority in order to
benefit from the Prime Minister"s Resolution No. 61 of 2022 which states that the Ministry of Finance will
bear the tax on real estate built for industrial sectors. The request is currently in process.

C. Al Ezz Flat Steel (EFS)
Corporate Tax
The tax inspection was performed till December 31, 2019, and all taxes due were paid.

For tax years from 2020 to 2023, EFS has filed tax returns and has paid the tax liability. Further EFS has
not been inspected by the relevant tax authorities yet for these periods.
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23 Taxation (continued)

23.4 Tax positions (continued)

cC. Al Ezz Flat Steel (EFS) (continued)

Sales Tax and VAT

The tax inspection was performed till 2020, and all taxes due were paid.

For the years from 2021 to 2023, EFS has submitted monthly tax returns on time to the relevant tax
authorities. However, EFS has not been inspected by the relevant tax authorites yet for these petiods.

Salary Tax
The tax inspection was performed for the period till 2020, and all taxes due wete paid.

For the years from 2021 to 2023, EFS has submitted annual tax forms and payroll reconciliations on time
to the relevant tax authorities. However, EFS has not been inspected by the relevant tax authorities yet for
these periods.

Stamp Tax

The tax inspection was performed for the period till December 31, 2020, and all taxes due were paid.
For the years from 2021 to 2023, EFS paid all tax dues.

Property Tax

The tax assessment has been issued and paid up to December 31, 2021.

D. Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company (ERM)

Corporate Tax

The Company was exempt from tax for the period from its inception till December 31, 1999, in accordance
with article No. (24) from Law No. (59) for 1979 related to development of the New Urban Communities.

The tax inspection was performed till December 31, 2019, and there are no outstanding dues.

For tax years from 2020 to 2023, ERM has filed tax returns, but, not been inspected by the relevant tax
authorities yet for these periods.

Sales Tax and VAT
The tax inspection was performed till 2020, and all taxes due were paid.

For the years from 2021 to 2023, ERM has submitted monthly tax returns on time to the relevant tax
authorites. However, ERM has not been inspected by the relevant tax authorities yet for these petiods.

Salary Tax
The tax inspection was performed for the period till 2020, and all taxes due were paid.

For the years 2021, 2022 and 2023, ERM has submitted annual tax forms and payroll reconciliations on
time to the relevant tax authorities. However, ERM has not been inspected by the relevant tax authorities
yet for these periods.

Stamp Tax

The tax inspection was performed for the period till December 31, 2020, and all taxes due were paid.
For the years 2021, 2022 and 2023, ERM paid all tax dues.

Property Tax

The tax assessment has been issued and paid up to December 31, 2021.
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24 Provisions
Government
and third
parties’  Employees
claims lawsuits Total
December 31, 2023 EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
As at January 1, 2023 610,417 1,955 612,372
Provisions formed during the year (Note 30) 847,858 50,000 897,858
Provisions utilized duting the year (120,593) - (120,593)
As at December 31, 2023 1,337,682 51,955 1,389,637
Government
and third Employees
parties’ claims lawsuits Total
December 31, 2022 EGP 000 EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
As at January 1, 2022 555,547 1,955 557,502
Provisions formed during the year (Note 30) 228,817 - 228,817
Provisions utilized during the year (173,947) - (173,947)
As at December 31, 2022 610,417 1,955 612,372

Provisions relate to claims expected to be made by authorities, employees and third parties in connection
with the Group’s operations and obligations. The provisions are re-assessed and reviewed by management
at each reporting date and the amount provided is adjusted based on latest development, discussions and
agreements with concerned parties.

25 Revenue from contracts with customers
A. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods at a point in time. The Group disaggregate revenue
by products line and by geographical location as disclosed in Note 38 (segment reporting).

B. Contract balances
2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
Contract assets - Trade and notes receivables — gross (Note 13) 3,232,244 6,282,676
Contract liabilities - Advances from customers (Note 22) 5,246,740 1,829,753
26 Cost of sales
2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
Raw materials consumed 91,811,644 44,452,101
Utilities 26,345,731 11,366,695
Spare parts and consumables 6,644,405 3,239,717
Indirect manufacturing overheads 3,699,694 1,078,141
Direct salaries and wages 3,421,982 2,641,201
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 6) 1,291,283 1,206,503
Maintenance 1,030,059 319,131
Provision for employees benefit obligations (Note 19) 27,515 38,056
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) 5,123 5,123
Total manufacturing cost 134,277,436 64,346,668
Changes in finished goods and work in progress (7,986,479) 647,323

126,290,957 64,993,991
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27 Administrative and general expenses
2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP 000
Salaries and wages 1,333,871 1,229,574
Insurance expenses 524,701 286,150
Legal and professional 348,665 90,025
Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenses 172,293 18,826
IT expenses 76,462 39,017
Rent expenses 47,348 78,040
Entertainment expenses 40,247 32,519
Security and cleaning expenses 26,866 24,858
Repair and maintenance expenses 24,676 10,754
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 6) 20,115 18,440
Depreciation of Right-of-use-assets (Note 7) 18,125 18,125
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) 11,375 10,152
Utilities 6,406 6,353
Provision for employees benefit obligations (Note 19) 5,741 7,673
Subscriptions and postage 7,726 16,267
Other expenses 162,107 53,622
2,826,724 1,940,395
28 Selling and marketing expenses
2023 2022
EGP “000 EGP ‘000
Exports related expenses 1,655,103 537,118
Advertising expenses 681,414 120,192
Salaries and wages 169,748 134,231
Freight 103,426 94,494
Market surveys 20,193 10,900
Provision for employees benefit obligations (Note 19) 1,945 2,691
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 6) 593 599
Other expenses 113,950 62,803
2,746,372 963,028
29 Other operating income
2023 2022
EGP “000 EGP ‘000
Sctap sales 314,757 123,751
Amounts recovered under settled claims 150,775 =
Others 88,946 52,140

554,478 175,891
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30 Other operating expenses

Donations

Provisions formed during the year (Note 24)

Impairment losses on non-financial assets (Note 13)
Provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventories (Note 11)
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Others

2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
1,006,112 527,851
897,858 228,817
25,000 35,269
20,492 45,000

6 490

117,906 63,877
2,067,374 901,304

Donations are in normal course of business of the Group and are generally made as part of “Corporate
Social Responsibility” strategy for promotion of spotts, education and welfare activides.

31 Finance income

Interest income on time deposits and restricted bank balances
Interest income on treasury bills (Note 14)

32 Finance cost

Interest expense on borrowings and bank overdrafts
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 7)

33 Foreign currency losses

Realized foreign currency losses
Unrealized foreign currency losses

33.1 Lack of exchangeability

2023 2022
EGP 000  EGP ‘000
2,326,059 379,999
149,090 34,175
2,475,149 414,174
2023 2022
EGP 000  EGP ‘000
7,167,274 3,349,017
10,935 14,009
7,178,209 3,363,026
2023 2022

EGP 000 EGP 000

13,332,536 2,239,459
8,268,555 2,227,105
21,601,091 4,466,564

The Group’s management has assessed that there was lack of exchangeability between EGP and other
currencies during the period from March 1, 2023 till March 6, 2024 and the Central Bank’s official rates
were not suitable for translation/conversion of foreign currency balances/transactions existing as at

/occurting during that period to the following reasons:

® FEgypt had severe shortages of foreign currencies during the year ended December 31, 2023, and these
shortages resulted in huge gaps between demand and supply of these foreign currencies in the Egyptian
market. In order to manage the situation, strict exchange controls measures were imposed by the
Egyptian Government. This included suspension of retail foreign currency payments (either online ot
through credit/debit cards), suspension of foreign currency withdrawals from Egyptian Banks,
imposition of limits on putchase of foreign currency exceeding a specified amount (amount varied
depending upon the nature of operations of the entity), imposition of limits on payments of foreign
cuttency abroad and restrictions on opening/settlement of foreign cutrency denominated letter of

credits.
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33

Foreign currency losses - net (continued)

33.1 Lack of exchangeability (continued)

The presence of these Government-imposed controls, theteby prohibiting the exchange of EGP and
foreign currencies or limiting the volume of foreign currency transactions was indicative of lack of
exchangeability between EGP and other cutrencies and vice versa.

The Group is primarily impotts oriented and majority of its raw matetials come from abroad. However,
due to presence of the afore-said measures, the Group was neither able to obtain other than
insignificant amounts of foreign currencies needed for its operations, nor it could easily open letters of
credits at the Central Bank’s official rate. Therefore, it had to resort to other foreign currency
management tools including but not limited to payment to foreign suppliers in EGP and other available
foreign currencies, obtaining additional borrowings in foreign cutrencies to fund its operations or
arranging purchases of foreign cutrencies at exchange rates significantly higher than Central Bank’s
official rates. Therefore, the use of Central Bank’s official rates for conversion/translation of foreign
currency transactions/balances would result in consolidated financial statements being misleading to
its usets.

Subsequent to the reporting date (refer Note 42 for details), the Central Bank of Egypt also
implemented an exchange rate flexibility, allowing the value of the EGP to be regulated by market
forces as an attempt to alleviate an already ailing economy. As the result of these measutes, the EGP
weakened by almost 60% i.e. from 30.9386 EGP/USD to 49.5743 EGP/USD. This also undermined
the reliability of Central Bank’s rates for use in conversion/translation of the afore-said transaction and
balances and indicated the existence of lack of exchangeability between EGP and other foreign
currencies during the afore-said period.

Estimated spof rates

The Group has estimated and used the following exchange rates for conversion/translation of foreign
currency transactions and balances occurring during the year/existing as at December 31, 2023:

AED EURO GBP JPY UsSDh CHF
Closing excchange rates*
December 31, 2023 13.4980 549481  (63.3163 0.3521  49.5743  59.3208
Average exchange rates**
March 0.5004  37.9080  43.0647 0.2628  34.8900 38.1395
April 10.4191 42.1740 48.1114 0.2807 38.2565 42,7877
May 104173 40.8503  47.3003 0.2733  38.2565 42.0170
June 10.4159  41.7761  48.7694 0.2676 382565 42,7304
July 12.2515 49.6575 57.9015 0.3198 45.0000  51.7837
August 122515  49.2255  57.3030 0.3088  45.0000 51.2996
September 12,2520  47.5785  54.7515 0.3023  45.0000  49.1857
October 13,1182 51.1544 58.6324 0.3233 48.1817 529237
November 153498  61.9159  71.6453 0.3839  56.3692  64.4146
December 15.5458  63.2844 72,9221 0.4055  57.0953  67.8494
*

The Group has estimated the closing exchange rates as at December 31, 2023 by adjusting exchange
rate as at March 6, 2024 (i.e. the date at which conditions indicating lack of exchangeability were
removed) with certain factors including the prevailing interest rates, market expectations existing as at
reporting date, expected changes in the economic condition occurring between December 31, 2023 to
March 6, 2024.
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33 Foreign currency losses - net (continued)
33.1 Lack of exchangeability (continued)

Estimated spot rafes (continued)

**  Average exchange rates for the period from March 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023 have been estimated,
using the following information.

® Indicative quotations obtained from financial institutions after adjustment for market conditions
prevailing in the relevant periods.

¢  Exchange rates actually incurred by the Group on monthly basis i.e. Actual amount of EGP paid each
month against total amount of foreign currency acquired during the relevant month.

Had the Group used the official Central Bank’s exchange rate for conversion/translation of foreign
currency transaction/balances for the year ended/as at December 31, 2023, the financial impact would have
been as follows:
Estimated Official Central
rate Bank’s rate Impact
EGP 000 EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000

Realized foreign currency losses

Net profit for the year (13,332,536) (11,653,079) (1,679,457)
Total equity (13,332,536) (11,653,079) (1,679,457)
Unrealized foreign currency losses

Net profit for the year (8,268,556) (15,052,682) 6,784,126
Total equity (8,268,556) (15,052,682) 6,784,126

Carrying amounts of affected assets and liabilities and the related financial impact is quantified as follows:
Estimated Official Central

rate Banlk’s rate Impact

EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000

Carrying amounts of assets 11,168,462 6,947,033 4,221,429
Cartying amounts of liabilities (72,862,355) (45,319,689 (27,542,666)

The Group is not significantly exposed to any specific risks arising out of the estimation of spot exchange
rate and using the same for translating the foreign currency balances. The Group’s overall exposure to
foreign currency risk is disclosed in Note 39.

34 Earnings per share

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Group by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2023 2022
Profit attributable to owners of the Parent (EGP ‘000) 850,914 3,721,472
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
Ordinary shares in ‘000 (Note 16) 543,265 543,265
Treasury shares in ‘000 (Note 16) (10,373) (10,373)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (‘000) 532,892 532,892
Basic earnings per share (EGP) 1.60 6.98
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34 Earnings per share (continued)
Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Group does not have any
categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares. Hence, the diluted earnings per share is equivalent to the
basic earnings per share.

35 Related parties

The Group entered into several transactions with companies and entities that are included within the
definition of related parties. The related parties comprise the Group” Board of Ditectors, their entities,
companies under common control, and employees of senior management. Non-controlling intetest are also
considered by the Group as related patties.

Balances with related parties as at the reporting date are as follows:

2023 2022
Amounts due from related parties EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
Entities under common control
Trade receivables from related parties
Al Ezz for Trading and Distributing Building Materials (Note 13) 9,451 9,297
Other receivables from related parties
Al Ezz Group Holding Company for Industry and Investment 871,242 -
Al Ezz for Ceramics and Porcelain 37,564 28,487
Ezz International 18,510 e
Gulf of Suez Development Company 62 11
927,378 28,498
936,829 37,795
2023 2022
Amounts due to related parties EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
Entities nnder conmon control
Al Ezz for Trading and Disttibuting Building Matetials 12 12
Al Ezz Group Holding Company for Industty and Investment - 56,584
12 56,596
Transactions with related parties during the year are as follows:
2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000
Entities under comimon control

Funds transferred — net 929,467 -
Expenses reimbursements — net 25,551 (730)
Sales to related partes during the year 935 1,035
Purchases from related parties during the year (335) (34)

The management decides the terms and conditions of transactions and services provided from/to related
parties, as well as other expenditures. The related parties’ balances outstanding as at December 31, 2023
and 2022 are non-interest bearing and the terms of transactions occurred with the related parties during the
year are not significantly different from those that could have been obtained from third parties.
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35 Related parties (continued)
Key management compensation

The amounts incurred by the Group as compensation to the Board Members and key management
personnel during the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP 000

Salaries and other benefits 353,227 375,639
36 Commitments and contingent liabilities

36.1 Capital commitments

The Group has capital commitments of EGP 116 million as at December 31, 2023 (2022: EGP 79.05
million) in respect of capital expenditure.

36.2 Contingent liabilities

2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000

Letters of credit 11,276,673 6,416,094
Letters of guarantee 5,498,620 343,769

16,775,293 6,759,863

These represent letters issued by commercial banks in favour of other parties in relation to payments for
materials and acquisition of property, plant and equipment imported during the yeat.

37 Cash flow information

37.1 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is disclosed in Notes 7 and 18. The details of
proceeds from/repayments of borrowings during the year is disclosed as follows:

2023 2022
Proceeds Repayments Proceeds  Repayments
EGP ‘000 EGP 000 EGP 000 EGP 000
Credit facilities (Note 18.5) 94,664,383  (65,217,800) 31,356,084  (36,150,918)
Term loans (Note 18.5) 6,328,066 (7,976,579) 3,264,993 (1,980,354

100,992,449  (73,194,379) 34,621,077  (38,131,272)

38 Operating segments

The Group operates across three segments in the market. No operating segments have been aggregated to
form the below referred reportable operating segments. Inter-segment transactions atise in the normal
course of business.

Revenue Gross profit Operating profit
Segment 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP000 EGP%00 EGP000 EGP%00 EGP 000
Flat Steel 66,460,365 32,061,614 18,850,803 8,406,415 16,180,948 7,110,016
Rebar 94,818,406 50,835,655 16,533,123 9,856,176 12,195,957 7,582,262
Others 1,117,625 1,086,964 721,513 727,651 642,542 669,128
Total 162,396,396 83,984,233 36,105,439 18,990,242 29,019,447 15,361,406
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38 Operating segments (continued)

Opetating profit is reconciled to net profit as follows:

2023 2022

EGP 000 EGP <000

Operating profit 29,019,447 15,361,406
Finance income 2,475,149 414,174
Finance cost (7,178,209) (3,363,026)
Foreign exchange losses (21,601,091) (4,466,564)
Income tax (825,468) (2,100,781)
Net profit 1,889,828 5,845,209

The segment information disclosed in the table above tepresents the segment information provided to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker of the Group.

Management has determined the operating segments based on the information reviewed by the Chief
Operating Decision Maker of the Group for the purpose of allocating and assessing resources.

The Group’s Chief Executive Officer is the chief operating decision maker and monitors the operating
results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured
consistently with profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.

All of the segments’ sales are made to external customets. The Group does not sell more than 5% of the
total sales to a single customer.
Geographical segments

The assets and liabilities of the Group are geographically located in Egypt. Therefore, detailed disclosutes
have not been provided. Geographical location-wise disaggregation of revenue of the Group are as follows:

2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000

Within Egypt 94,657,864 68,690,022
Outside Egypt 67,738,532 15,294 211
Total 162,396,396 83,984,233
39 Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to 2 variety of financial risks i.e. credit risk, market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and cash flow interest rate risk) and lquidity risk.

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks, and the Group management of capital.
Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial statements,

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group risk
management framework. The Group risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the
tisks faced by the Gtoup, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Group’s activities.

The Group aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees

understand their roles and obligations. The Group’s management focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
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39 Financial risk management (continued)

The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and
non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Market risk - foreign Transactions not Cash flow by dealing with local banks
exchange denominated in Egyptian forecasting, which offer official
Pounds sensitivity analysis exchange rates and
matching of long and short
positions in foreign
currencies.
Market risk - interest Long-term borrowing at Sensitivity analysis Investment in treasury bills
rate variable rates and bank deposits
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, Aging analysis, credit  Diversification of bank
trade receivables and ratings deposits, credit limits and
financial assets at amortized governmental treasury bills
cost
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other Rolling cash flow Availability of committed
liabilities forecasts credit lines and borrowing
facilities

39.1 Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the other party to incur financial loss. The Group is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments.
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets
recognised at the repotting date, as summarised below:

2023 2022

EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000

Trade and other receivables 7,181,330 9,100,177
Treasury bills 1,513,822 566,332
Bank balances 31,792,885 12,726,080
Total 40,488,037 22,392,589

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The demographics of the Group's customer base, including the default risk has less of an influence on
credit risk.

The Group seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to counter parties by setting various credit limits and
monitoring outstanding receivables. Adequate follow up procedures ate followed for the recovery of
receivables as per the terms of the contracts.

Most of Group’s revenue is represented in sales transactions with many customers with close values for
each customer. Hence, there is no concentration of credit risk on specific customers.

Tmpairment of frade and other receivables

The Group applies simplified approach available in IFRS 9 for measuring the expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all the trade and notes receivables.
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39 Financial risk management (continued)
39.1 Credit risk (continued)
Trade and other receivables (continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables (continued)

Other receivables (deposits and lettets of credit) are considered to have low credit risk as these are either
due from public sector companies or financial institutions having reputable credit ratings. Therefore, the
loss allowance recognised on these receivables is based on the 12 months expected loss.

To measure the expected credit losses, these financial assets have been grouped based on shared link
characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantally the same risk characteristics as trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group
has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation
of the loss rates for the contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a petriod of 36 months before
December 31, 2023 or January 1, 2023, respectively, and the corresponding historical credit losses
experiences within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect the current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables, The Group has identified the GDP and the unemployment rate of the countries in which it
sells its goods and services to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates
based on expected changes in these factors.

The loss allowance as at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 was determined as follows:

Neither Past due but not impaired
past due
not <30 31-90 91-180 181-360 > 360

Total impaired Days Days Days Days Days
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP 000 EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP 000 EGP ‘000

December 31, 2023
Expected loss rate 0.56% 0.00% 0.32% 0.00%  12.55% 0.34% 100%
Gross catrying amount 7,221,889 7,059,958 20,719 14,320 26,062 63,872 36,958
Loss allowance 40,559 43 66 - 3,272 220 36,958
Neither Past due but not impaired
past due
not <30 31-90 91-180 181-360 > 360
Total  impaired Days Days Days Days Days
EGP 000 EGP 000 EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP 000 EGP 000 EGP ‘000
Decernber 31, 2022
Expected loss rate 0.44% 0.00% 0.02% 0.02% 1.05% 3.93% 100.00%
Gross carrying amount 9,140,736 8,642,498 352,022 62,502 17,761 26,756 39,197
Loss allowance 40,559 44 69 12 186 1,051 39,197
Treasury bills

Treasury bills are issued by the government and are considered with a high credit rating.
Cash at banks and short-term bank deposits

Credit risk relating to bank balances and short-term bank deposits arises from the risk that the counterparty
becomes insolvent, and accordingly, is unable to return the deposited funds. T'o mitigate this risk, wherever
possible, the Group conducts transactions and deposits funds with financial institutions with high
investment grade and reasonable and acceptable credit ratings.
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39 Financial risk management (continued)

39.2 Market risk

Martket risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments, The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rate.

The Group is exposed to currency risk on transactions denominated in a curtency other than the respective
functional currencies of the Group, primarily the U.S. Dollars (USD) and Euro. In respect of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group ensures that its net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level through purchase or sale of the foreign currencies with current prices necessary to cover
mismatch of currency positions.

As at year end, majot financial assets/ (liabilities) in foreign currencies were as follows:

2023 2022

Assets Liabilities Net Net

EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP <000

United States Dollars (USD) 10,743,139  (69,172,217)  (58,429,078) (21,285,796)
Euros 415,826 (3,570,967) (3,155,141) (1,376,643)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 30% (2022: 30%) increase and decrease in EGP
against the relevant foreign currencies with all other variables held constant. 30% (2022: 30%) is the
sensitivity rate used which represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the year-end for a 30% (2022: 30%) change in foreign cutrency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit or equity where EGP strengthens 30% (2022: 30%) against the relevant
currency. For a 30% weakening of EGP against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact
on the profit or equity, and the balances below would be negative.

Effect on profit and equity

2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP 000

United States Dollars (USD) 17,528,723 6,385,739
Euro 946,542 412,993
Other market price risk

Other market price risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as equity prices, will affect the Group’s
results or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s intetest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by short term treasury bills and bank
deposits which are renewed with the applicable interest rate at the time of renewal. Borrowings measured
at amortised cost with variable rates do not expose the group to fair value interest rate risk.
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39 Financial risk management (continued)
39.2 Market risk (continued)
Cash flow interest rate risk (continued)

As at reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group’s financial instruments is as follows:

2023 2022
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000

Financial instruments with variable interest rates

Financial assets - bank deposits 6,432,394 1,103,181
Financial assets — treasury bills 1,513,822 566,332
Financial liabilities — borrowings (68,507,424) (32,770,188)
Net exposure (60,561,208)  (31,100,675)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit and closing equity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates of £5% (2022: £2%) with all other variables held constant. These changes
are considered to be reasonably possible based on observation of current market conditions.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding variable interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities and
discloses the period end impact for a 5% (2022: 2%) change in the vatiable rate component of interest.
Positive figures represent an increase in profit ot equity.

Dectease in interest rate Increase in interest rate
Profit Equity Profit Equity
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP 000
2023 (5%) 3,028,060 3,028,060 (3,028,060) (3,028,060)
2022 (2%) 622,013 622,013 (622,013) 622,013)

39.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that the sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a suitable
period, including the service of financial obligations. This excludes the potential impact of extreme
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below summarizes the maturities of the Group’s undiscounted financial Liabilities as at December
31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, based on contractual payment dates and cutrent interest rates.

Within 1to 5 More than

1year years 5 years Total
EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP ‘000 EGP “000

December 31, 2023
Borrowings 42,461,487 26,045,937 - 68,507,424
Trade and other payables 29,634,386 4,487,620 - 34,122,506
Bank overdraft 218,442 - - 218,442
Lease liabilities 41,591 - - 41,591
72,356,406 30,533,557 - 102,889,963
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39 Financial risk management (continued)
39.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
Maturities of financial liabilities (continued)

Within 1to5 More than
1 year Years 5 years Total
EGP 000 EGP 000 EGP 000 EGP ‘000

December 31, 2022

Borrowings 17,034,756 12,070,673 3,664,759 32,770,188
Trade and other payables 17,058,656 3,121,114 - 20,179,770
Bank overdraft 638,717 - - 638,717
Lease liabilities 38,704 38,704 - 77,408

34,770,833 15,230,491 3,664,759 53,666,083

Loan covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Group is mainly required to comply with the
following financial covenants:

®  Current ratio should not be less than 1

e  Netdebt to EBITA should not exceed 3 times of total debt;

Debt coverage ratio should not be less than 1:1;

Financial leverage should not exceed the range of 3.0:2.5;

The cash operating profit after tax over finance cost ratio should not be less than 1 time of the total
payments;

®  Receivable Cover ratio at least 1.4:1; and

®  Consolidated cash should not be less than EGP 1.85 billion or USD 80 million whichevet is higher.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group was in compliance with the debt covenants.

39.4 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain the confidence of its
investors, creditors and the market and to sustain future development of the business. The Boatrd monitors
the return on capital, which the Group defines as net operating income divided by total shareholders’ equity.
The Board also monitors the level of dividends paid to shareholders.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the period. The Group is
not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. Equity is measured at EGP 1,218.1 million as at
December 31, 2023 (2022: Deficit of equity amounted to EGP 653.3 million)

40 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to settle a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset ot pay the
liability takes place either:

®  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
®  In the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset or the liability.
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40 Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group should be able to have access to the principal market or the most advantageous market. In the
absence of principal market, the Group does not need to conduct a thorough search of possible markets
to determine the principal or the most advantageous market. However, the Group takes into consideration
all information reasonably available.

The below shows the financial assets and liabilities at fair value in the consolidated financial statements as
at December 31, 2023 and 2022 within the hierarchy of the fair value, based on the input levels that are
considered to be significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Inputs of quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
which the Group can have access to at the date of measurement.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level I that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs of the asset or the liability.

The fair values of financial instruments are not materially different from their cartying values. The fair value
of financial assets and liabilities are considered at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

® Cash and bank balances, treasuty bills, trade receivables, other financial assets, amounts due from
related parties, trade and other payables and amounts due to related parties approximate their carrying
amounts, largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

® For borrowings, fair value is approximately equal to the carrying amount since these bear variable
interest rate that approximate the market prevailing rates.

®  Fair value of financial assets at FVOCI has been disclosed in Note 10.

41 Delisting of Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company - Alexandria (EZDK)

On August 5, 2023, the shareholders of Al Ezz Dekheila Steel Company ~ Alexandria (EZDK) resolved
for voluntary delisting of EZDK’s shares from the Egyptian Stock Exchange. In pursuance with the
resolution, minority shareholders were provided an opportunity to sell off and sutrender their shareholding
at exercise price of EGP 1,250 pet share within a period of 3 months from tesolution date. The fund
required to purchase the shares from the minority shareholders was deposited by the Group in a separate
bank account under the control of the regulatory authority in accordance with relevant Egyptian Laws and

Regulations.

As at December 31, 2023, 6,940,595 shares had been transferred from the minotity shareholders’ names to
a special account under the relevant Egyptian law and regulations. Based on the relevant laws and
regulations, the management has assessed that this amount paid on buying back the shares from minority
shareholders will be recognised as receivable until the decision for their final disposal is taken.

42 Subsequent events

- The Central Bank’s Monetary Policy Committee decided at its meeting on Thursday, February 1, 2024,
to raise the overnight deposit and lending rates and the Central Bank main transaction by 200 basis
points to 21.25%, 22.25% and 21.75%, respectively. Also, credit and discount rates had been raised by
200 basis points to reach 21.75%.

- The Central Bank’s Monetary Policy Committee decided at its meeting on Wednesday, March 6, 2024,
to raise the overnight deposit and lending rates and the Central Bank main transaction by 600 basis
points to 27.25%, 28.25% and 28.75%, respectively. Also, credit 2and discount rates had been raised by
600 basis points to reach 27.75%.
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Subsequent events (continued)

On Wednesday, March 6, 2024, the Central Bank also implemented an exchange rate flexibility,
allowing the value of the Egyptian pound to be regulated by market forces as an attempt to alleviate
an already ailing economy. As the result of these measures, the EGP weakened by almost 60% i.e.
from 30.9386 EGP/USD to 49.5743 EGP/USD.

In pursuance with applicable laws and regulations, the shareholders of the Company resolved, in the
extra ordinary general meeting held on July 8, 2024, to cancel 910,481 treasury shares (with an
acquisition value and a face value of EGP 10.38 million and EGP 4.55 million tespectively)
outstanding as at December 31, 2023,

On August 8, 2024, a notice of antd-dumping investigations was initiated by European Trade
Commission in respect of imports of hot-rolled flat steel originating in certain countries including
Egypt. The investigations were initiated based on a complaint submitted by the European Steel
Association (EUROFER) to the relevant authorities in Europe. As the Group is the sole exporter of
hot rolled flat steel to the European Union from Egypt, certain data may be required to be provided
in relation to its exports to the investigating authorities. The investigations are cutrently ongoing and
the outcome of the same shall be determined by the management in due course, once further
information is received from investigating authorities.
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